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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – APRIL 22, 2010

(Time Noted – 7:00 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will then consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; but may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask if anyone has a cell phone to please turn the cell phone off so that we would not be interrupted. And also when speaking into the microphone speak directly into the microphone at all times because it is being recorded. And I'd like to mention that all Members of the Board have visited all of the sites that are on the agenda this evening. Roll call please. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY









DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

ALSO PRESENT: 
BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, FIRE INSPECTOR 

(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 22, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:02 PM) 

CARMELO LIARDI



30 FROZEN RIDGE ROAD, NBGH







(21-3-7) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yard setback for a non-conforming building to restore deck after one year due to fire damage to the residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening Carmelo Liardi.                

Ms. Gennarelli: For tonight's applications all of the Public Hearing Notices for all the new applications being heard this evening were published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, April 13th and in the Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday, April 14th. This applicant sent out seventeen registered letters, seventeen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Could you for the record state your name? 

Mr. Liardi: Carmelo Liardi.

Chairperson Cardone: And state your request.

Mr. Liardi: To rebuild the deck. 

Mr. Donovan: Could you be more succinct? 

Mr. Liardi: Excuse me?

Mr. Donovan: Sorry. 

Chairperson Cardone: You're replacing a deck?

Mr. Liardi: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: And it is going to be the same size as the deck that was there previously? 

Mr. Liardi: Yes, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board?  

Mr. Hughes: That house has been empty for quite a while?

Mr. Liardi: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: How long ago was that fire there? 

Mr. Liardi: It's got to be two years in July.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry was there some issue?

Mr. Canfield: (Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: So then its because its past a year that its got…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, Ron, could please pull the mic closer.

Mr. Hughes: So then it's because it's past the year that it's got?

Chairperson Cardone: That's why he's here because it's been over a year.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you. 

Mr. Hughes: Are all the other issues in that building cleaned up? I know there were some questions about trailers in the yard and some other things going on as well.

Mr. Canfield: Jerry Canfield, Code Compliance to answer your question Ron, the fire was on July 2 '08. There were some outstanding site issues which the owner has been cooperating and cleaning up the property with respect to the cars and the trailer. But I would like to bring to the Board's attention that in all honesty I'm not certain that the…what's on the agenda is correct for this property. And the problem being is that the language in 185-19-B (2) and Dave's laugh (inaudible)…

Mr. Donovan: 50%. 

Mr. Canfield: …picked up on it also. I believe that is more intended for use.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah, O.K.

Mr. Canfield: But the paragraph starts with a non-conforming building and that verbiage I believe is what had thrown the Building Department off course thinking that this application should come before this Board.

Mr. Donovan: In the next sentence too Jerry it talks about damage of more than 50%, which I don't know if this building qualifies for that.

Mr. Canfield: It does with the damage from the fire was quite extensive to the rear of the structure.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: But again what I was looking at Dave is that when reviewing it this afternoon and going over the agenda that conversation more directs towards use…

Mr. Donovan: Correct. Non…

Mr. Canfield: Non-conforming use and that's not the case here. I just wanted to bring that to the Board's attention. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so then I have some further questions I don't know which one of you guys can answer it.

Chairperson Cardone: Could you speak into the microphone? 

Mr. Hughes: Sure. Is the house being repaired as well or is this just about the decks. We don't have anything about the house going on here.

Mr. Canfield: Perhaps the applicant will explain what is intended to do.

Mr. Liardi: We're going to rebuild that's why I'm waiting for that to get the variance to rebuild the house. 

Mr. Hughes: And are you going to live in this house or is it…?

Mr. Liardi: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? Do I have we motion to close the Hearing? 

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:06 PM)

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 22, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 10:19 PM) 



CARMELO LIARDI



30 FROZEN RIDGE ROAD, NBGH







(21-3-7) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yard setback for a non-conforming building to restore deck after one year due to fire damage to the residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the application of Carmelo Liardi, 30 Frozen Ridge Road, seeking an area variance for the side yard setback for a non-conforming building to restore the deck after one year due to fire damage. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, I have one more question about this thing here. Wasn't there a…

Ms. Gennarelli: Ron, could you speak a little closer into the mic?

Mr. Hughes: I can.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: Weren't they repairing cars in that building or something? That's a residential zone. There was all kinds of stuff that went on there and there's trailers left over on the property.

Mr. Canfield: He had a box or he still does have a box container in the backyard and there were a couple of unlicensed cars in the driveway. Some of the neighbors had complained. He removed the cars. I don't know, I can't say for sure Ron that he was repairing them there. The house at the time of the fire I know because I was at it. It was unoccupied. 

Mr. Hughes: There was never, there hasn't been anybody living in that building for years. They've fixing stuff in the garage, in the basement.

Mr. Canfield: I've been in the garage. There was no indication of like a repair shop or anything like that. I think if at best it was just him tinkering with whatever he had there.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I'll ask you to keep an eye on that place when they're going back at it. I've lived up the street about twenty-five years and not good.   

Ms. Drake: Jerry, is there an issue with the fact that its been unoccupied or taking longer to rebuild the house more than the two years? Or they are allowed to let it go forever and then rebuild it?

Mr. Canfield: Code wise we have nothing that states that you have to have a certain timeframe. It's not an issue, as we discussed before as a non-conforming use that's not, there is no clock running in that sense. I can tell you though we have had a lot of complaints from the neighbors about the house being burned and not repaired. I'm glad to see that he's finally come forward and you know, had made application to come before the Board and move forward with it.

Ms. Drake: It would have been nice to see him start doing something before he…

Mr. Canfield: I'm sure the neighbors would like to have that cleaned back up even if its unoccupied at least its repaired and you don't have that burned smell in your neighborhood. 

Mr. McKelvey: The only thing is, he's not doing the house, he's doing the deck.

Mr. Hughes: That's why I asked about the repair to the house and the deck.

Mr. Canfield: I believe the deck was part of the whole application. I think what Joe Mattina had picked up was the deck being outside of the house or attached to the rear of the house. But he did state, if you remember, in his presentation that he wasn't making the deck any larger.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, I understand. 

Ms. Drake: So his whole application to the Building Department is to repair the whole house?

Mr. Canfield: Fire damage repair. Correct.

Mr. McKelvey: But that's not what it said here.

Ms. Drake: But he doesn't need a variance to do that. He only needs a variance for the deck.

Mr. Manley: I think it will be an improvement if giving this gentleman the variance will move the home forward and get it rebuilt I think that's the best thing for the neighbors. I'd be willing to make a motion for approval.

Ms. Drake: Second that. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.  


             



 (Time Noted – 10:23 PM)
ZBA MEETING – APRIL 22, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:06 PM) 

ELIZABETH DEPUY


7 GRIMM ROAD, NBGH







(76-5-9) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front yard setback, the maximum lot building coverage, the maximum lot surface coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the rear yard setback to build a second floor addition to the residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant this evening Elizabeth Depuy.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out fourteen registered letters, twelve were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Depuy: We'll basically we're looking at…

Chairperson Cardone: Please speak into the microphone. 

Ms. Gennarelli: You can take it off or you can make it higher, whatever you would like to do, take it off the mic stand. You need to be about two inches from your mouth. It comes right off.

Mr. Depuy: Basically we're looking at three bedrooms to the existing dwelling.

Ms. Drake: Could you state who you are please?

Mr. Depuy: I'm David Depuy. Elizabeth is my mother. 

Ms. Drake: Are you just adding a second floor or are you leveling the house and starting over again?

Mr. Depuy: No, we're adding 15-feet to the house and then going up top. Basically it's the front setback that we're like 8-feet off and then the back one its only because of a deck we're adding to it for the variance. 

Mr. Hughes: How many bedrooms do you have there now?

Mr. Depuy: In the house all together? There's six bedrooms right now.

Mr. Hughes: And you're going to add three more?

Mr. Depuy: Right, well we're changing the downstairs so I can have a living area. I'm moving in with my family. I have two children myself. Sorry, I'm a little nervous. I have two children myself so on my mother's side we're going to keep it the same and then I'm going to add a family room and then put three bedrooms for me and my kids.

Mr. McKelvey: You have water and sewage? Town water and sewage?

Mr. Depuy: Yes we do.

Mr. Hughes: Your paper says you have Town water but no sewer. 

Mr. Depuy: We're going to hook up to sewer and when we do…she never hooked up to the sewer. She had just had a septic put in when they did the sewer down the road so she just left it.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, is there sewer in Grimm Road on that side, I mean in the back?

Mr. Canfield: It's accessible.  

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: You are going to hook into it then?

Mr. Depuy: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: Nine bedrooms so nine bedrooms?   

Mr. Depuy: No there's going to be. No, we're changing. We're taking two out and making a family room and then you know putting them on top.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. Because I looked at your floor plan and it didn't add up. 

Mr. Depuy: Yeah, no, we're going to make the two bedrooms downstairs into a family room so she can have her own family side and we can have ours.

Mr. Hughes: She must have a good sense of humor, huh?

Mr. Depuy: Or a glutton for punishment. 

Mr. Hughes: Lock the door once you get them out. All right as long as you're going hook into both water and sewer. You've got water in there already?  

Mr. Depuy: Yes, Town water is already hooked up and there's a fire hydrant right out front of the house.   

Ms. Eaton: Will you be running a business out of this home?

Mr. Depuy: No, I won't. 

Ms. Eaton: This front office area is just for your personal use?

Mr. Depuy: Yeah, its more for a like, you know, like a game not a game room but an office yes, but my personal billing and stuff nothing to do with my business. I have a shop and I have a yard of my own. 

Mr. Manley: I noticed based on the current layout of the property that you have two feet to the rear setback from the property line and on your plans it says two feet plus or minus. Are you factoring that you are going to be closer than two feet to the property line, or…?

Mr. Depuy: No we're going to be less.

Mr. Manley: O.K. Do you have an idea of how much less? 

Mr. Depuy: I don't know exactly to be honest with you.

Mr. Manley: Also your side yard setback is…looks like its changing by about 15-feet. You're about 40-feet away now you're going down to 25 on the one side yard setback that again is plus or minus. Do you…?

Mr. Depuy: We're adding 15-feet to the house that would leave us 25-feet on the side yard. So it's really just the back setback that's because of the deck. You know its all staying the same that's there now we're just adding 15-feet out which leaves us plenty of space on the side yard that's why went up so we didn't want to, you know, so we didn't infringe on the side yard.   

Ms. Eaton: Will the shed remain in the yard?

Mr. Depuy: There is no existing shed that's our neighbor's that the neighbor's shed. 

Chairperson Cardone: It did look like it was on your property.

Mr. Depuy: To be honest with you I don't see exactly what you're talking about on the layout. 

Mr. Canfield: Just for the Board's record what the applicant is looking at is a survey that was submitted by Charles Brown dated January 21, 2010 and the survey that we're looking at that's what I'm sharing with Mr. Depuy it doesn't have a shed and that's where he's getting the numbers for that he's quoting you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right but what I'm talking about on the site visit it appeared that the shed was on his property.

Mr. Depuy: Oh, no that's our neighbor's shed. 

Mr. Manley: What's your plans for parking? With that many number of bedrooms I would imagine there's going to be a number of vehicles and the parking doesn't appear to be very…

Mr. Depuy: There's only…I'm one driver, it's my kids, you know, basically so and there's a driveway…I got a driveway permit already, so I mean you can get two cars on the driveway so I don't see any more cars than that to be honest with you. My mother parks her car in the garage already so that leaves her driveway also. 

Ms. Drake: Will there be two kitchens or one kitchen? 

Mr. Depuy: Just one kitchen, we're sharing. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board?  

Mr. Hughes: I see you have a note here in the corner of the plan next to Moran's here "existing parking to be removed".

Mr. Depuy: Well that's really just from where people park on the yard its kind of like a dirt area so I think they just wanted to put that on there so its all, you know, everything…

Mr. Hughes: Realistically you have parking for two cars only?

Mr. Depuy: I've got the garage, so two garage and then the two drives so the driveway on either side so that's four or five cars to be honest with you. 

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing further. Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Please state your name and address for the record.

Ms. Berchem: Hi, my name is Jane Berchem, Town of Newburgh; I have no problem with the Depuys we live basically next door to them. The only thing I'd like to know is he owns a landscaping company, excuse me I'm nervous too, and he's been like all winter we had the landscaping trucks are there and he gets them way over off the road and in front of his mom's house and stuff like that but when the bus comes through it's tight. Because basically it's the shoulders and I don't know if you're going to when you move in…is all this stuff coming back? I know it hasn't been there.

Mr. Depuy: Since the winter I accessed a yard for the equipment so there will be no other trucks there except, you know, my personal vehicle. So now I have a yard where I'm going to keep all my stuff and a shop to keep all the equipment.

Ms. Berchem: O.K. that's all I was worried about. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Dr. Freer: Good evening, Dr. Helene Freer, Town of Newburgh and I've had the wrath of you guys before so I know how scary it is to be at that end. I've lived across from the Depuys for the entire time that they've been around and I can't tell you that there is not a harder working group of people. My concern also is traffic unfortunately it is traffic. We have a daycare. We have run into trouble. Every time I've had some they've been taken care of but it is a lot of traffic. It's hard to say that other trucks and landscaping things aren't going to be there. I have to admit since the winter and since the storm there hasn't really been anything there so I bet you do have a place there. May I approach because…may I approach, I have…

Chairperson Cardone: Sure.

Dr. Freer approached with pictures. 

Mr. McKelvey: I don't think he's allowed to have this landscaping stuff on his property anyhow.

Chairperson Cardone: We can share these pictures. They're all the same here.

Dr. Freer: They are. It's basically what Jane Berchem said. Our concern is the bend on the road. We have a daycare and I mean, I ran an office for many years, the parking that you see there is the parking that was described next to the Moran's and they are concerned. Obviously no one wants to…everyone likes the Depuys and no one wants to give them any trouble and that's for sure but we are worried.

Mr. McKelvey: They are not allowed to have this stuff on the property anyhow.

Dr. Freer: Well the thing is those…the reality is, you know, if you go to work and you come home in your truck. We're just concerned about the thoroughfare of Grimm Road. It…there's a lot of weight, there's a lot of everything. The past few years when relatives or tenants or whatever that was the parking space where those vehicles are now. So now they get to be there but what happens if that gets filled up. That's our concern. Again we wish them well.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you. For the record, the report from the Orange County Department of Planning is Local Determination. Do we have any other question, comments? 

Ms. Drake: So it is your intent now not to park any of the landscaping business vehicles there being you have the yard? Correct?

Mr. Depuy: Correct. Correct. You have to remember you know I'm number eleven of eleven of eleven kids. My mother has twenty-four grandkids. There's always cars on that road and if they're worried about, you know, our traffic…the traffic that comes up that road just to go to McDonald's is out of control so as far as the business goes like I've said, you know, I've taken measures, you know, obviously in the winter if there's a…you know, has there been an extra truck there? I'm not going to lie. Yeah of course, you know, it’s a snowstorm; you've been out all night. You know what I'm saying. Other than that I haven't kept, you know, much stuff there. 

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else?      

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:19 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 22, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 10:23 PM) 



ELIZABETH DEPUY


7 GRIMM ROAD, NBGH







(76-5-9) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the front yard setback, the maximum lot building coverage, the maximum lot surface coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the rear yard setback to build a second floor addition to the residence.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Elizabeth Depuy, 7 Grimm Road, seeking area variances for the front yard setback, the maximum lot building coverage, the maximum lot surface coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the rear yard setback to build a second floor addition to the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Hughes: Well I think we wrung it out pretty good with the conversation that went on and you do understand you can't run a business out of there? 

Mr. Depuy: Understood.

Mr. Manley: The only thing that the neighbors had a real concern with was, you know, the traffic impacts. 

Mr. Hughes: It seems as though they have the parking covered with the two garages and the two driveways.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Mr. Maher: I guess, the only concern I would have is making sure that the sewer connection obviously is done, enlarging the bedrooms to that number of bedrooms in the house.

Mr. Manley: Do we maybe want to make a condition on the sewer hook-up based on the fact that the current septic may not handle the existing or the addition of the bedrooms?

Ms. Drake: I like that idea.

Mr. Hughes: Just make it a condition of the approval.

Mr. Donovan: That's fine.

Mr. Hughes: Water and sewer. So you have water there already? Town water? 

Mr. Depuy: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. So the sewer and the note that no business will be conducted in the form of vehicles and things of that nature. I'll move it.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.  

 (Time Noted – 10:24 PM)
ZBA MEETING –APRIL 22, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:20 PM) 



JOSEPH & SUSAN AULOGIA

2 HOPEVIEW COURT, NBGH







(23-2-30) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a two-tier rear deck on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Joseph and Susan Aulogia.               

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out thirteen registered letters, twelve were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Just for the record identify yourself.

Ms. Aulogia: I'm Susan Aulogia.

Ms. Gennarelli: Is that mic on?

Mr. Aulogia: Yes I'm Joe. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you share the microphone?

Mr. Aulogia: Sure. 

Ms. Aulogia: Susan Aulogia. 

Mr. Aulogia: Joe Aulogia.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. State your request.

Mr. Aulogia: Sure, we would like an area variance for the rear yard setback so we could put a deck off of our kitchen. 

Chairperson Cardone: And that would lead to the pool? Right?

Mr. Aulogia: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? 

Ms. Eaton: Did you attempt to see if any land available from the people behind you? If they would sell anything? 

Mr. Aulogia: We…its an existing neighbor, we did not try to do that because the property line is there. I'm not sure if I understand the question, I'm sorry. 

Ms. Eaton: Well sometimes if there is vacant land behind you you could.

Mr. Aulogia: There is no vacant land. It's an existing neighbor. 

Ms. Eaton: Is there a house right behind yours?

Mr. Aulogia: No. There's, I mean, there's quite a bit of expanse of his backyard and I would say his house is about two hundred feet or so from our house.

Ms. Aulogia: It's on Linda Drive. 

Ms. Eaton: Thank you.

Mr. Canfield: If I may? Ruth, the backyards, the backyards that abut up to this are the backyards of the residents over on Linda Drive.  

Ms. Eaton: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: And there are residences back there.

Ms. Eaton: Thank you. 

Mr. Hughes: This picture here is this where your kitchen is, in this corner of the house?

Mr. Aulogia: I'm sorry. May I?

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Mr. Aulogia approached the Board. 

Mr. Aulogia: The kitchen is right where that landing is. That's all we have there now.

Mr. Hughes: All right. It's unclear from the diagram where. Does the kitchen wrap around the corner of the house.

Mr. Aulogia: No, actually the kitchen ends right there and that's our living room.  

Mr. Hughes: And is that the back of the fireplace? 

Mr. Aulogia: Correct. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board or the Public?

Mr. Maher: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Aulogia: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:22 PM)

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING –APRIL 22, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 10:24 PM) 



JOSEPH & SUSAN AULOGIA

2 HOPEVIEW COURT, NBGH







(23-2-30) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a two-tier rear deck on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Joseph and Susan Aulogia, 2 Hopeview Court, seeking an area variance for the rear yard setback to build a two tier rear deck on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I normally don't like to see something like this. This is a brand new house, in a brand new development and its just a matter of that they…where they put the building was for convenience and not considering the future. The pool and the sheds and everything else, right now you've painted yourself into a corner. You've got pretty much anything that you can have there on that property. I don't see a problem with it but I just I don't like to see that thing go on where its just poor planning that painted you into a corner by the contractor. That's a brand new subdivision. There should be no reason for you to come here for variances.

Mr. Maher: I'll make a motion for approval.  

Mr. Hughes/Mr. Manley: I'll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Who is the second on that?

Mr. Hughes: Manley.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.  

(Time Noted – 10:26 PM)
ZBA MEETING – APRIL 22, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:22 PM) 

DANIEL HESIDENCE


28 WARING ROAD, NBGH







(65-3-13) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an Interpretation of 185-19-C and/or area variances for one and combined side yard setbacks, the rear yard setback and the maximum lot building coverage to convert a vacant garage to a 1-family residence and a Special Permit to conduct a home occupation use as an artist studio.   

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Daniel Hesidence.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out thirty-one registered letters, twenty were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Valdina: My name is Frank Valdina representing Dan Hesidence. You have before you an application which we're requesting an Interpretation. If the interpretation is not as I believe it is then we're requesting variances in accordance with the application and also in conjunction with the application a Special Use Permit for an art studio within the residence. What we have is an existing structure. If you can't see the photos I have others. I have copies of that if the Board would like those.

Mr. McKelvey: We've been to the property.

Chairperson Cardone: We're very familiar with it.

Mr. Valdina: All right. Basically just to give you an idea this is the structure, an overview of Waring Road, it sits back about 140-feet from Waring Road very close to the rear property line. The structure was built in 1930. Its been used for a garage and various, I believe, storage of construction equipment over the years. We said the purpose is to convert this into a single-family residence in which there will be an art studio contained within the confines of the building. It is not the purpose to extend the building in any manner beyond its present configuration. It will of course be renovated as far as the interior to accommodate the residents and the art studio. The exterior will be treated with a neutral colored grout. The Building Permit, of course, was denied due to the interpretation by the Building Inspector office pertaining to the Code. The request for the interpretation is that my interpretation of the Code is under Section 185-19-C (1) we have an existing building which is going to be converted to a use conforming use of whether the Code does allow for pre-existing conditions to exist as long as there is no increase in the non-conformity. That's the request for the interpretation. If the Board disagrees with that interpretation then it’s requested the variances I've set forth in the Building Permit denial can be considered and granted to the application. Of course, the art studio under the Code is a permitted use however it does required a Special Use Permit to be issued by the Zoning Board of Appeals. The applicant presently lives in Long Island City. His intent is to relocate to this location to live and proceed or continue with his artwork. His artwork is distributed and set forth in galleries throughout Europe, the United States and Canada. There will not be any employees involved with the art studio. It's basically a one-person operation. I believe that is the presentation.

Mr. McKelvey: Is the front of the building going to remain the same with the garage doors?  

Mr. Valdina: No I have this façade for the front of the building, this is a plan that was submitted with the building plans to the Building Department. It's not in the application but I do have copies.

Mr. McKelvey: Oh, O.K. 

Mr. Valdina: As you can see there is going to be quite a difference in the esthetics of the building when its completed versus what is there now.

Ms. Drake: Will the studio be open to the public?

Mr. Hesidence: Hi, I'm Daniel Hesidence. No actually my studio is New York City, in Long Island City so that's where my main studio is. I just painted since I was two whether it be in my folk's basement or whatnot. So I won't be open to the public or anything like that. Its not a…you know all my business is done in the City and kind of outside of the States actually so its really just…

Ms. Drake: So it's for you to be able to paint in there?

Mr. Hesidence: Yeah, well paint and draw things like that it's just what I do when I'm at home.   

Mr. McKelvey: Are you going to live there too?

Mr. Hesidence: Yeah, it's going to be my primary residence.

Mr. McKelvey: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Would you be selling any of the paintings from there? I mean would there be trucks coming in?

Mr. Hesidence: No, no selling or anything like that out of Newburgh. Now if a truck comes in it might be smaller than a UPS truck and it would maybe be five times out of 365 days of the year. There is nothing going in and out of this. This isn't a business its my home, its just…this is what I've always done. 

Chairperson Cardone: You wouldn't be conducting classes?

Mr. Hesidence: No, nothing like that.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, let's go to the videotape what does it say about Special Permit Use for this? How could this be licensed in a residential area with a Special Permit?

Ms. Gennarelli: Ron, I'm sorry, could you just pull that microphone in a little bit?

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Mr. Canfield: Rephrase your question Ron.

Mr. Hughes: Well I just, its really not a question, I'm looking for some guidance on how a Special Permit Use is attached to something like this. This is a residential area, its an artist's studio, the applicant is indicating that the art studio won't be heated and it's on the opposite side of the two-car garage from the living/dwelling? Could that be? Do you paint in the cold? 

Mr. Valdina: The art studio will be heated.

Mr. Hughes: It doesn't list it as a heated area here, on what Frank just passed up.

Mr. McKelvey: Use the microphone. 

Ms. Gennarelli: We have two mics. We have another one if you want to grab that one. ughes: 

Mr. H

Mr. Hesidence: No it will be heated. 

Mr. Hughes: Oh, O.K. I was looking at the little boxes on the side where you calculated your square footages. Right. I see it there now. Yeah. O.K. Now I also and its not this diagram but I saw something that appeared as though a part of the existing building is on another property is that so?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, that's true.

Mr. Valdina: There are exceptions in the neighboring deed…

Ms. Gennarelli: Frank, I'm sorry, could you take back that microphone?

Mr. Valdina: Yes. The deed of the adjoining property excepts from their land this portion of the structure. It's in the deed. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions or comments from the public? Please state your name and address. 

Ms. Sottile: Hi, I'm Janet Sottile, Town of Newburgh. I live next door to this building. My question is is why does he need the special variance or whatever that to have an art studio when other people in Town including myself do thing out of their house and we don't have a special variance as a business? Is it because of painting and not sewing?

Chairperson Cardone: Maybe you shouldn't be saying that, with a Building Inspector sitting right there.

Ms. Sottile: Well no, no, no, no…it's not like I'm running the rugs out of the house or anything. I'm just saying if it's painting or sewing or it it's crafting or this…teaching a kid the piano whatever it could be? 

Ms. Gennarelli: Mrs. Sottile could you tilt the microphone?

Ms. Sottile: Oh, why does he need a Special Permit and nobody else? I don't understand that.

Mr. McKelvey: I wouldn't stand there and…

Chairperson Cardone: Anyone who has a Home Business is supposed to have a Special Permit.

Ms. Sottile: O.K. everybody?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Ms. Sottile: Let me ask you another question. How are we going to be sure that nothing…? And if you give somebody an inch they are going to take a yard and we've all been there. And you all know what I'm talking about…so how do we know that as time goes by year after year and (inaudible) I don't know you but I'm just saying, a couple kids come in for class, a couple of trucks come into pick up something, somebody comes in to commission some work and before you know it there's four or five cars, then there's five or ten. How do we know that's not going to happen when you don't put in these guidelines for him that that can never be done so we don't have to go through what we went through before? And this is something maybe we're all talking about for now.

Chairperson Cardone: That can be done.

Ms. Sottile: And this is something the neighbors are all talking about now.

Mr. McKelvey: That can be done.

Ms. Sottile: I mean so where do you get…? O.K. who is going to give you the information as to set down and say you cannot do this, you cannot do…I don't care what he can do. I want to know what he can't do because that's going to be the problem. 

Mr. McKelvey: We can specify that he is only going to do this.

Ms. Sottile: Right, I'm just saying, O.K. but you know what I'm trying to say, O.K., you can't run a business because running a business entails lessons, people coming in. I don't mind the supply trucks for there because they are UPS stuff that's not a problem but I don't what I'm trying to say is I don't want happens here happened at Sloane Road. You give somebody a little bit and they're going to take a lot. O.K. That's all I'm asking is that it could only be done and no attorney is going to look through this and say oh, well there's a loophole here and we could do this. Do you know what I'm trying to say?  

Chairperson Cardone: I know what you're saying.

Ms. Sottile: O.K. All right so you all understand. Thank you.

Mr. Hesidence: And Miss, Miss to help you. Miss, maybe it will put you at ease? 

Chairperson Cardone: If you could speak directly into the mic? O.K.

Mr. Hesidence: Maybe it would put you at ease; I think that you have my resume. Just to show what I do. You know the work is…you know there's no art classes or anything like that.  

(Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me. Just…O.K.

Ms. Sottile: Sorry, sorry I understand what I'm saying but we've been through a real bad situation there before. O.K.? And a lot of the neighbors are not here because some of them have to work and we've all discussed it. We just…we're happy to have you. It would be great to have somebody next door that has some talent doing something. O.K.? But we don't want to have a problem with trucks and cars and people and kids and lessons and all that. We don't want it that way. That's all I'm saying.

Mr. Hesidence: I completely understand.

Mr. McKelvey: We're aware of the problems in the past.

Ms. Sottile: Yeah, I know. I'm sure the whole Town knows. But I'm just saying it's not a real big lot. It gets real crowded on that. You could put on sidewalks and the parking gets a little crazy sometimes.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Sottile: Ed Sottile, Town of Newburgh.

Ms. Gennarelli: Ed, you are going to have to make it higher or take it off the stand.  

Mr. McKelvey: You can pull it right off. 

Mr. Sottile: So my question is this and don't get me wrong I would like to see something in that building no doubt about it. The problem is when you're looking at it the way it's pictured there the left side that small room that's on the end of the building that room is the property line but I had it surveyed. The surveyor came in and he said that building, that wall is actually the property line. So my question is this if you're going to do something with the exterior for a finish you are going to be on my property to do that and I'm not to keen on that idea because of insurance and whatnot. They've had in the past there was guys up on the roof and they were putting ladders on my property and going up the roof and my attorney told me if somebody falls that ladder and falls on your property you've got a situation. So I would have to know how you are going to finish it and also on the left side from the previous owner because that was all one piece of property at one time. When they divided it they divided it but they didn't tell anybody but there's underground septic tank on the left hand side of that building so that would also have to be removed. I got stuck with it. I don't mind having to remove it and like when I get time to move it but that is something that's going to have to be dealt with. And the only other question I would have is where are the bathrooms and the sewer lines and all that stuff going to be? 

Mr. McKelvey: Do you want to see a drawing?

Mr. Valdina: Well on the floor plan in that little addition that protrudes to the east shows the master bathroom in there and there's a bath near the easterly third of the building. There is Town water and Town sewer on Waring Road.

Ms. Drake: Use the microphone.

Chairperson Cardone: Use the microphone.

Mr. Sottile: (Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: No it's being recorded and it goes directly in from the microphone.

Mr. Sottile: All right so if you look at this building right here, this end…         

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: We have two microphones gentlemen. You have to use both of them. Thank you.

Mr. Sottile: So again looking at this this small piece of the building here. There is a tank on the outside wall there in the ground that I ended finding because when I had to get a Permit to have my small pool put in I had the guy come in with a small grader and have him put the…the thing just had to take the grass off, I told him to dump it in the back and when he dumped it he says come here I got to show you some thing. He exposed the tank so that's why I know its there.

Mr. McKelvey: Which property is the tank on? 

Mr. Sottile: Well, when the property was one, it was on that property and now its I got stuck with it.

Ms. Drake: So it's on your property is what you're saying?

Mr. Sottile: Yeah, unfortunately the tank is on my property. What they did was the pipe that comes out of that wall they cemented it up, very conveniently and they buried it and you wouldn't have known it was there if I didn't have the guy that you know, the guy to go over it with the grader. 

Ms. Drake: One of the proper ways to abandon a septic systems is fill in the septic tank with gravel or something and leave it in the ground.

Mr. Sottile: Right. Yeah. 

Ms. Drake: So, that may have been what happened. I don't know whether it was filled or not.


Mr. Sottile: That was not filled. It's hollow.

Ms. Drake: Oh it is?

Mr. Sottile: Oh yeah. 

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Sottile: I can guarantee you that. O.K.? Because I've exposed the lid and looked in, it's hollow. 

Ms. Drake: O.K. 

Mr. Sottile: So again the only thing I would be concerned about is this building is the property line so I don't know how you would do any refinishing here. I was kind of hoping that somebody would take that piece off. Even if you kept that piece of land, I would care but just to take that off because that would alleviate a lot but…

Mr. Valdina: (Inaudible) the floor plan that supposed to be utilized as a bathroom for the master bedroom.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions or comments?

Mr. Hughes: I have some. You're saying there is water there?

Mr. Valdina: There is water on Waring Road and sewer.

Mr. Hughes: And sewer?

Mr. Valdina: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: And you're going to have to connect to that?

Mr. Valdina: Yes, that's the intent.

Mr. Hughes: Now, what about…

Mr. Valdina: There's no wells so I mean there's no other facilities. The building is entirely stripped right now.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. So now even though you're saying that it shows that the water comes up through that protrusion there to the master bedroom how does the applicant feel about having that tank removed and eliminating that part of the building that's on the other guy's property? 

Mr. Valdina: The owner isn't here to respond to that.

Mr. Hughes: Pardon?

Mr. Valdina: The owner available to respond to that question. I don't know what the… 

Mr. Hughes: Aren't you the owner?

Mr. Valdina: He's the applicant; he's the contract vendee.

Chairperson Cardone: But he is planning to buy it.   

Mr. Valdina: That's correct.

Mr. Hughes: So you're in contract but you don't own the property?

Mr. Hesidence: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: All right so you're going to be the new owner if you're allowed to do what you're asking to do and as the new owner would you be willing to use some common sense and take that tank out of the ground and take that protrusion off the other guys property? If this thing that you're talking about for the future plan of refurbishing this building includes being on the other guys property I don't know if we can rule on that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Please use the microphone.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes we can.

Mr. Hughes: Let's get back to basics here first things first. You've got a hell of a hurdle to come over here before you can convince that I'm going to say yeah, you can hook the water and hook the sewer and you don't need to have that on the other guy's property because of that. You're going out to the road. You're not using the well and you're not using that tank. Speak to me.

Mr. Hesidence: This is the builder, Mike. If you want to take…

Mr. Pomarico: Hi, Michael Pomarico. How are you? I built the two homes adjacent to this property. This property had one owner, I guess, at a prior time and it was later subdivided so the septic tank and the additional area that is in that gray area of the property and basically it was all one property at one time that's what I was told. As far as the septic tank if it's O.K. the neighbor to work on his property…if he is worried about liability, you know, I think that's not a hurdle that can't be cleared. He could be held harmless, you know, or we could have a named additional insured for as far as ladders setting up in the little area. But that could be filled in; the tank pumped out and filled in provided we have permission to go on the property to do it. You know it wouldn't be a big thing to do maybe 10-yards of material stone could be easily dumped in there.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel? The adjacent property owner is here, the two things are here with imposing conditions can we insist that this be cleared up or is this a civil matter that we can't even rule on?

Mr. Donovan: Well we can suggest. I don't know what the connection to the variance request and I don't mean to…as I frequently do but we do have to, you know, focus on the issue in front of us. 

Mr. Hughes: Well, this is a big hinge point here as far as I see it that's why I'm asking for your legal counsel.

Mr. Pomarico: The filling of the tank is that the main…

Mr. Hughes: That's up to you and this guy, not me.

Mr. Pomarico: …hurdle as far as the tank itself, right, to fill it in? 

Ms. Drake: Please use the microphone.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, you have to use the mic.

Mr. Sottile: One is the tank and the other one would be that the building is the property line.


Mr. Pomarico: Yes.

Mr. Sottile: So how are you going to get around being on my property and finishing it off that building? 

Mr. Pomarico: Being it is on this line he can make the same argument when you mow the lawn next to his property what if you got hurt? So I mean you got to be neighbors and work with each other for a very brief window and after that…

Mr. Sottile: I understand that but…

Mr. Pomarico: …its done. You know, you can twist your ankle walking right next to the building so then its like…

Mr. Sottile: You know when the guys that were on the ladder…

Mr. Pomarico: Right.

Mr. Sottile: …so when I asked them very nicely, I said, look you know the ladders I appreciate, you know…

Mr. Pomarico: Yeah.

Mr. Sottile: …I mean they started swearing at me so…

Mr. Pomarico: No that's their mistake.

Mr. Sottile: And I'm not saying that you guys are going to that but you know what I've got to assume the worst.

Mr. Pomarico: Sure.

Mr. Sottile: So I don't want to get sued.

Mr. Pomarico: No. 

Mr. Sottile: And so something is going to have to be done in order for you guys to get access in order to finish that building.

Mr. Pomarico: Well I think once he purchases there would be…there would be a homeowner's policy and possibly even a builder's risk policy if there is a bank involved with a mortgage. You could probably be named additional insured to give you that protection for just the duration of the construction, you know, if that would suffice. 

Mr. McKelvey: Does that satisfy you?

Mr. Sottile: Yeah but I want you to come over and look at it before you...

Mr. Hesidence: No problem.  

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. This lady has been waiting to speak if we could just let her speak now.

Ms. Dinitto: Bernadette Dinitto, Town of Newburgh, former owner of this controversial property of forty years at which time we were never allowed even a truck on that property and today even if you make baskets in your house you know who delivers your supplies? A tractor-trailer. So Mr. Hesidence is this a hobby or is this your livelihood because if it's your livelihood it constitutes a business? And we don't want the traffic. The last business to enter there without our permission actually ruined our road ruined the Town road. So how many times are we going to appear here about this building? And what would you like to know about it? After forty years, I'll tell you a lot about and you don't need that much property for a hobby, absolutely not. You'd have to be rich just to pay the taxes on that building if you ain't going to make money there…

Mr. Hesidence: I'm just trying to make the best of a situation. Like I said my studio is in New York City. This is what I always do. I understand your concerns.

Ms. Dinitto: …and then the business then you're going to bring a business to Waring Road.   

Mr. Hesidence: I understand your concerns but this is a win, win for everybody. I found this place because quite honestly I'm from Ohio and it reminded me of where I grew up.

Ms. Dinitto: Right.

Mr. Hesidence: My business, all that stuff is in New York City. My studio is going to remain there. This is just what I do.

Ms. Dinitto: And, and… 

Mr. McKelvey: He is going to live on…

Ms. Dinitto: The studio is in New York City…

Mr. McKelvey: He is going to live on the property too.

Ms. Dinitto: …he's going to live on the property and you're going to commute everyday to New York City?  

Mr. Hesidence: I don't know about everyday but yeah.

Ms. Dinitto: Oh, yeah, right, but there won't be any big trucks coming into that property, right? That's what we want to be guaranteed.

Mr. Hesidence: There will be no monster trucks coming into that property.

Ms. Dinitto: And do you think a small truck is going to deliver your supplies?

Mr. Hesidence: I'm not…there's going to be no truck larger than a UPS and there's not going to be a bunch of trucks at all.

Ms. Dinitto: Right.

Mr. Hesidence: And it's just…

Ms. Dinitto: Just you?

Mr. Hesidence: Me and someone else.

Ms. Dinitto: We'll see. 

Mr. Pomarico: I would just like to add something to that to. I would guess if we're going to disallow any truck larger than a UPS we could also have to tell all the neighbors that you're not allowed to move in the moving van. You're not allowed to get a refrigerator delivered from Lowe's, you know, you know, this goes both ways. The man is clearly…

Ms. Dinitto: (Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me please address all comments to the Board not to each other.

Mr. Pomarico: …the man is an artist his art is his inspiration. When he gets the inspiration to paint it could be three in the morning and he'll have the shades down I'm sure he won't bother anybody and he'll paint. This is what the man does. O.K.? This is his…in his DNA…no matter what he does with it at that point it's really no issue to anyone outside of the building as long as there's no large trucks. The problem the neighborhood was traumatized by a sunroom business that had eighteen-wheelers running in and out. 

Chairperson Cardone: We're aware of that. Yes.

Mr. Pomarico: That's what I'm saying so it left a bad taste in everyone's mouth. So now this poor guy comes along and he wants to just live there and paint and do his art and if the UPS truck pulls up, I mean, it's no different than anybody else's house, you know? I mean, I'm going to get new appliances delivered soon from Lowe's and guess what a truck bigger than a UPS will pull into my driveway but you know, you have to understand it’s a one shot thing. It's not like it's going to be every day, you know, so you have to give him that slack too, I feel.

Mr. McKelvey: We are aware of what went on on that property. There's two copies of minutes from the meetings before.

Mr. Pomarico: I really think that the residents and the neighbors and this Board and this Town is missing a golden opportunity to take an obvious eyesore, an obvious wart on the Town and turn it into something beautiful. It's going to be a nice carriage house and you're going to have a responsible owner there. This is an opportunity that is knocking and it may not knock again. So if you want to have that building with graffiti on it and weeds growing it? If that's one choice and the other choice is to have a responsible owner then you really have to put that on a scale and weigh it and it goes for the neighbors too. I mean its for the greater good of the community and provided, as he said, there will not be large tractor trailers like the last bonehead that ran a business out of there. You know, that basically traumatized everyone and their children around there.

Mr. McKelvey: He's also stated that he's not going to run a business from there.

Mr. Pomarico: A sunroom business is a vastly different world than if you can call art a business. Art is what you do, its an inspiration and you know what, if drew a picture and someone wanted to buy it from me, I'd sell it to them if I could. But they wouldn't buy my pictures. That's the problem. I think we're missing an opportunity here.

Mr. Manley: Mr. Valdina, would the applicant be willing to accept a lot of conditions being added to this application? If the Board were to consider approving this, stipulations such as no sales to be done out of, you know, out of the property, no public in and out for the purposes of classes or even for the purchasing of art, restrictions like that on the…any type of approval for the protection of the neighbors? Would there be any…?

Mr. Hesidence: That's no problem. You can put that in.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. let me…

Mr. Valdina: He already stated to what it was going to be and basically its as you outlined none of that is supposed to be taking place or will be taking place.

Mr. Donovan: Now if I can, I'm having a hard time getting my arms around what you're in the first instance asking us to do and then if you tell us you're not going to have a business and the conditions that Mr. Manley suggests are acceptable then why is there an application for a Home Occupation?

Mr. Valdina: Because it's being proposed on the building plan as an art studio. Under the Code, an art studio requires a Special Permit from the ZBA and that is the reason for that portion of the application.

Mr. Donovan: Well, let me just because I am a lawyer so I'm going to look at the definition of a Home Occupation and it says a gainful occupation or profession customarily conducted within a dwelling by the residents thereof. I'm a lawyer I have a room in my house that has a computer and it has some books but I don't see clients there. It's not a home occupation even though I may do something in that room and so my question that I can't figure out the answer to is if you're not going to do any of this stuff, and that's a legal term, that constitutes a home occupation why are you applying for a Home Occupation?

Mr. Valdina: Basically because the Building Department denied the permit stating that they needed a Special Use Permit for an artist's studio.

Chairperson Cardone: All right. Jerry will address that. 

Mr. Valdina: So…and that goes along with my other interpretation as far as the variance requirements.

Mr. Hughes: What table did you cite for this Home Occupation and Special Permit?

Mr. Canfield: I think I can clear some of this up and you started to ask that question before, Ron. This is an R-3 district. The Bulk Use requirements for an R-3 as an accessory use list home occupation with a footnote of #2 and if you go to #2, footnote #2 signifies that it must have a Special Use Permit from the Zoning Board. If you go to 185-3 under definitions of home occupation the first identification is Art Studio. That being said, the art studio which is what was on the application that's what triggered the Building Department to say, get to the Bulk Use Tables, gets you back to 185-3 it’s a Home Occupation. Now if the applicant is telling you something or explaining differently and I'm not implying that they are telling the Building Department and the Zoning Board two different things but if the clarification is made by the applicant that it is not a Home Occupation per say and a hobby then I believe its up to the Board to determine whether that Home Occupation Permit is needed or not. If that clarifies it?

Mr. Donovan: No, it absolutely clarifies it for me.

Mr. Hughes: Absolutely.

Mr. McKelvey: Absolutely.

Mr. Hughes: So one other thing, counsel, does it specify the difference between home occupation, art studio and casual use? Or is casual use not mentioned?  

Mr. Donovan: Well casual use is not mentioned.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: But it says gainful occupation or profession.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: And so if you're not carrying on your profession there but you may, at certain times, you know…I don't know…What kind of artwork do you do if I may ask? 

Mr. Hesidence: I'm a painter.

Mr. Donovan: My cousin does set designs in Manhattan so he paints on big things as opposed to, you know, Picasso may paint on little things so I…

Mr. Hesidence: Along the lines of the Picasso.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. you hope right?

Mr. Hesidence: We all hope, yeah. 

Mr. Hughes: Or at least the price tag be there, right? 

Mr. Hesidence: It would be real nice.

Mr. Hughes: Before you're done?

Mr. Hesidence: Yeah, before.

Ms. Drake: So you paint whether you paint at home or wherever you paint and then you take them to New York City and sell them in your galleries down there?

Mr. Hesidence: Yeah.

Ms. Drake: O.K. So it is the work that you do but you're not…its only if you get inspired to do it at that hour of the night or day or whatever, I don't know.

Mr. Hesidence: Yeah, the only…I mean the easiest way to describe it is kind of like a Hemingway thing wherever he lives he is constantly writing whether it actually materializes into something who knows?

Mr. Donovan: So I think it comes down to this, if he withdraws his application for a Home Occupation then he does what he does in there and he can't run a business, a gainful occupation or a profession then he runs afoul of the Zoning Ordinance. Alternatively if we issue you a Home Occupation I really don't think the conditions that you suggest are appropriate because we're saying you can…we'll approve your home occupation with the condition that you don't have a home occupation condition. That's what we're saying. 

Mr. Hughes: Isn't that an annual thing too? You don't want get into that? A Special Permit with an annual inspection. 

Mr. Manley: The only thing you would do under a home occupation is limit hours but it doesn't sound like the applicant…

Ms. Gennarelli: Mike.

Ms. Drake: Microphone. 

Mr. Pomarico: I mean his work its not that he does something and then calls up a guy and says O.K. come see what I painted see if you want to buy it or whatever or I'm having a viewing tomorrow where thirty people show up. He's strictly…I'm a builder by trade all my life, sometimes I bring plans home and on my kitchen table I work on the plans but I have an office near Lowe's where I meet my clients where I do my actual business. So I think this is just a unique place for him to operate and he needs…it’s a very spatial and visual business that he's in obviously that he needs, you know, the room around him and he wants a big open area like a studio so this really fit with where he has place in Queens that he does all of his operations out of. So this is like a place he can still operate out of but not really see clients or have any kind of commerce there. And that could be a condition, you know, obviously. 

Mr. Donovan: Well the question is do you…are you going to modify your application to withdraw the home occupation aspect of it or not?

Mr. Valdina: Well if it is mutually agreed that its not considered a Home Occupancy then there isn't any need for the application.

Mr. Donovan: Well only if he is carrying on a gainful occupation or profession.

Mr. Valdina: Well I think, you being the attorney, is a gainful if he does the paintings at home, takes them to New York and sells them. I don't know. I'm not an attorney.

Mr. Donovan: Well the business is not being conducted there.

Mr. Valdina: No, he's not conducting the business there he's just doing his painting there. He's an artist. 

Mr. Donovan: He's got to understand that if you decide after you finish this place you want to have a, you know, whatever you call when people come and view your painting. 

Chairperson Cardone: A showing. 

Mr. Donovan: You can't have that. 

Mr. Hesidence: Yeah, again my…any business that's conducted for me is in London, its in Paris, its in Zurich and its in New York City, its…its not in the Town of Newburgh. 

I'd love to live here. I'm trying to live here but business…that would be tough for me. There is no business here. There is no business for me here. If that's the way to…you know I'd love to do it that way.

Mr. Donovan: It sounds to me that it's not a home occupation 

Mr. Hughes: I agree.

Mr. McKelvey: I agree too. 

Mr. Donovan: And I would suggest that you modify your request or withdraw that. 

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, do you have any divine wisdom you can share on this about a review on this to put it in the proper concept, I mean, I agree with the attorney. I don't think this is a home occupation.

Mr. Donovan: Betty, make sure that's in the minutes. 

Mr. Hughes: We agreed on something. 

Mr. Canfield: It’s a first. I think, Ron, to best answer your question was my analogy before. I believe I'm in 100% in agree with what Dave is advising you. The Board must, I shouldn't say must but may want to look at what the applicant is telling you and then make a determination. If you feel satisfied that what the applicant is telling you that it is not a gainful employed occupation at home and make that determination. Once you make that determination and I think that's the Board's decision that that's what you have to do then you can proceed. If the applicant is willing to accept your determination and withdraw his portion of that of the application, the home occupation portion of it then you can carry on and then make determination on the other determination that's before you. 

Mr. McKelvey: I think he agreed to what Jim asked or stated, you know, earlier.

Mr. Hughes: Having said all that now, let me make sure everybody in the room understands where we're going with this thing. If that's so and you withdraw the application…

Chairperson Cardone: That part of the application.

Mr. Hughes: …that part of the application. Use is not an issue here either because it's listed.

Mr. Canfield: Correct. 

Mr. Hughes: Right and if it's not a home occupation it is listed as an accessory item an art studio…

Mr. Donovan: As a home occupation.

Mr. Hughes: As a home, well no, as a dwelling as a residence.

Mr. Canfield: If you remove the home occupation segment of this application it now becomes a single-family dwelling. 

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Mr. Canfield: Which is a permitted use in an R-3 zone.

Mr. Hughes: Better well said than what I tried to say. That's what I was getting. O.K.

Ms. Drake: Jerry, would the plan need to be revised so it doesn't say artist's studio.

Mr. Canfield: Let me say on the record, I'd like to renegotiate my salary. I think I'm on an attorney scale now.

Ms. Drake: Dave.

Mr. Donovan: So far you're doing good Jerry.

Mr. Hughes: All right. But then that brings us down to an area variance so…

Mr. Donovan: I would suggest that that has a different title to it. You know, den or just studio.

Mr. Maher: Drawing room.

Mr. Donovan: Drawing room.

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Pomarico: Can I please add something? When this whole thing was in preliminary, you know, should I buy the place or not? We went back and forth. I took the time to meet with Tilford, Mark Taylor. We all sat in the office. Basically Mark Taylor went to the Zoning Ordinances, a studio is permitted, allowed in a residence provided that the studio is not 50% larger than the rest of the living area. So we clearly designed it so that it would not be, so that addressed that. And if the one caveat is that there is no money or any compensation being exchanged for any good or service on that property be it a painting or, you know, whatever you want to call it, if there is no commerce being done, no money changing hands then I really see why or I really don't see why he cannot live there and do his art provided he is also going to have his place of business in Manhattan. 

Mr. Donovan: I think that is what we're saying. We're just saying it's not a Home Occupation that comes out of the equation.    

Mr. Manley: And that would include, you know, the transport or, you know, the sending of paintings from that location lets say by FedEx somewhere. I mean all that would have to originate out of your studio down in Manhattan. You're going to, you know, because then you'd be looking at that being your office occupation there. That would be how I would look at it. 

Mr. Pomarico: You'd have to transport things from there…


Ms. Drake: Use the microphone. 

Mr. Pomarico: I mean if he…

Mr. Manley: What I'm saying is if he arranged for a sale at that location and then sent it from that location...

Mr. Pomarico: No, no to a client.

Mr. Manley: …from that location to a client…

Mr. Pomarico: To a client, right, that wouldn't happen. 

Mr. Manley: …then in my mind that would be engaging in an occupation out of that property.

Mr. Pomarico: Right, yeah.

Mr. Manley: In my estimation that would be a no go.

Mr. Pomarico: Right, but it does needed to be noted that a truck like a UPS style truck would need to be allowed to actually take something from his residence and bring it to his studio in Manhattan.

Mr. Manley: Sure.

Mr. Pomarico: As long as that's O.K. that's the main thing. O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Sottile: I'm sorry I have a question about I see you got the bathroom over here in the small part of the building and the kitchen over here in the middle of the building. How do you plan on running the waste line from that small part of the building?

Mr. Pomarico: What we would do is saw cut the concrete in the existing building. We would open a channel up that would route that plumbing from that little gray area bump out totally into the building and then down to the street. So nothing would travel through your property at any point it would all be internal in building. Then we pour a new floor, which we have to do anyway and resurface it.

Mr. Sottile: O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Pomarico: You're welcome. 

Mr. Valdina: The other portion of the application pertains to the interpretation. The Building Inspector Department indicated that variances were required for setbacks, side yard, rear yard, percentage of lot coverage of the building. Under the Code 185-19-C- (1) indicates any non-conforming building doesn't meet Bulk Requirements can still be utilized as long as the use is in accordance with the Code and you do not need a variance. That's why the interpretation was requested because we have a difference of opinion.  

Mr. Donovan: Actually it doesn't say that.

Mr. Hughes: It doesn't.

Mr. Donovan: Because its got a double negative any house which does not house a non-conforming use that's 185-19-C- (1) so that means if it housing a conforming use then you get the benefit. But the use here according to the Notice of Disapproval is a non-conforming. 

Mr. Valdina: The use as a residence is conforming that's an R-3 district. 

Mr. Donovan: But its being converted from a use that's is…

Mr. Valdina: Coming from a non-conforming use…

Mr. Donovan: Right.

Mr. Valdina: …it’s a lot building, a vacant lot building.

Mr. Donovan: Right. That only applies to uses that are not non-conforming which are conforming since you're conforming this paragraph doesn't apply. Hey listen, I didn't write it I'm just reading it.

Mr. Valdina: O.K. I think you'd find all kinds of little items of that nature in that Code. Of course, no matter how many times you review it. Well therefore that was the reason if the interpretation is in accordance with the Building Inspector the variances for the side yard setback and lot area coverage are requested. Again its an existing building built in the 1930 well before zoning. What happened when the lots were subdivided I do not know the time frame as what the zoning status was at that point in time and how it may have gotten through the Planning Board. But I know the deed does accept that portion of the building on the adjoining property as was stated by the adjoining owner. It is not proposed to increase any existing non-conformity pertaining to the Bulk Regulations. Of course I would think a garage is a conforming use. If the Boards compares an existing building use not a non-conforming use then I think we meet the requirements. 

Chairperson Cardone: I think the issue is that it was not used as residence before and even though a residence is conforming to the district that particular building was not a residence and I think that's what our attorney was referring to.

Mr. Valdina: Well again, I'm not an attorney but if it was considered a garage which is not a non-conforming use which means it’s a conforming use then changing it from one conforming use to another conforming use I believe that section of the Code indicates that the variances are not required. If the Board and the attorney do not agree…

Chairperson Cardone: I don't have to agree but I…

Mr. Valdina: Well if there's not an agreement then the other portion of the application is the request for the variances.  

Mr. Pomarico: I would just also like to add that its in a residential zone so you can just reinforce the use of it by allowing it to conform to residential use now instead of keeping it this (inaudible)…

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Pomarico: …that it currently has been.

Chairperson Cardone: Right but it would still need the variances. 

Mr. Hughes: Do we have any kind of interference with continuance here? Attorney? Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: No because there is none.

Chairperson Cardone: Different, it’s a different use.

Mr. Hughes: There's no continuance on anything here.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah correct. That's why.

Mr. Hughes: It was abandoned.

Mr. Donovan: Correct. So that's why there's a conversion to a conforming use but we have the setback issues and the lot coverage issue. 

Mr. Hughes: So we're back down to the area variances only if he withdraws?

Mr. Donovan: That's correct. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: I think we've got it where it belongs now as far as understanding the project. I don't know whether what we're going to do with it but…

Chairperson Cardone: There's no exterior change to the building except cosmetic?

Mr. Valdina: That's correct. Now as indicated on the sketch I presented to the Board its just cosmetic for the whole building.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you. Yes?

Mr. Makita: My name is Joe Makita. I own the property immediately behind it about 2-feet away from my property line. Last time they did work like the other neighbors we had problems with the workers littering glass on my property and things like that. So I'm afraid of that. But I do want to see an artist's rendition of what it's going to look like as far as the back and the front.

Chairperson Cardone: Do you have that?

Mr. Pomarico: We did not do a rear elevation. However I could prepare one there would probably be a couple of new windows cut in to meet egress for what would be bedrooms along the back. Otherwise it would pretty much stay the way it is and more than likely be resurfaced for the parking or whatever. In regards to the other contractors who made a mess they didn't hire Pomarico that was the problem.

Mr. Makita: Well I know that Mike. But I am concerned even about the colors. I don't know an artist might come out and have a big red house. I'm not sure where it's heading to.

Mr. Pomarico: Earthy tones, I guess, we want it to blend into the woodwork there. 

Mr. Makita: I hope so.

Mr. Pomarico: He showed me some…through his travels in Europe he sent me a lot of pictures and he liked things that are very traditional looking. The kind of stuff you see in the English countryside with like a stucco finish or you know, parching pretty much like that. No eyesores.

Mr. Makita: Will we get to see these artist's renditions?

Mr. Pomarico: We could…I could prepare a blank of the building of how the back would look but its up to Mr. Hesidence to pick the color and then, you know, I'm sure he would have no problem sharing that with the people immediately around that if need be.

Ms. Jacobs: Hi I'm Eileen Jacobs, Town of Newburgh and I just wanted to ask you did you intend to just…do you paint on canvass with your studio or was there any other medium you were going to work in? 

Mr. Hesidence: I do drawings and paint on canvass.

Ms. Jacobs: No sculpture or bound materials?

Mr. Hesidence: I don't do heavy stuff no.

Ms. Jacobs: O.K. that's my only question. 

Mr. Hesidence: Yeah.

Ms. Jacobs: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions?

Ms. Eaton: How about the front of the house with the lawn are you going to have blacktop into the garage?

Mr. Valdina: There will be a driveway to the garage. 

Ms. Eaton: And it will be wide enough for two cars, the blacktop coming in? Will be blacktop or gravel or…?

Mr. Valdina: It will be a 12-foot wide asphalt driveway. It will widen out as you get to the structure for two parking spaces but it's not going to be a 24-foot asphalt strip from the building on to the road. 

Chairperson Cardone: It would be about where the driveway was? I know it's over grown now with…

Ms. Gennarelli: If you don't speak into the microphone it won't get into the record.    

Mr. Pomarico: The driveway would probably be relocated to the right side actually its work better on that side. Right now there is kind of a shale driveway on the left and its all overgrown so its like its not there anymore anyway.

Mr. McKelvey: Is not going to head right into the garage? 

Mr. Pomarico: Oh yeah, its going to head for the doors on the right, on the right side there, yeah, towards that area or the central, yeah, right in the middle, you know, coming in and kind of turn.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments?

Mr. Manley: Just one other is there going to be an entrance door, an exterior exit and entrance door from the studio out to the front of the house there? Or is it only going to be an entrance into the garage? 

Mr. Valdina: No there is an entrance door shown on the plan…right here and one over here. This is a three-foot door.

Mr. Manley: It would be a direct entrance from the outside into the studio?

Mr. Valdina: Yes, for safety reasons you have quite an extended area to get out in an emergency if you have to if you had to go all the way over to the other side. It's a safety consideration.

Mr. Pomarico: The doors were set up with a carriage house effect essentially so you're going to have sets of double doors and then some triple doors but they are all going to be operable. You know, they'll all have egress. With each room you need egress out. We need to address the egress issues in the back like I say for bedrooms that would be via window or bedroom door. However the big rooms in the front to provide egress we have to make sure that all those areas are, you know passable where you can go outside in case of emergency or whatever which I'm sure that the a…

Mr. Manley: So how many doors will be in the front?

Mr. Pomarico: Oh, we're replacing all the garage doors there's going to be five sets of doors, one garage doors and then a combination of French doors, you know, surrounding it. They're all like French doors with the transoms, decorative arch transoms but they'll all be operable. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions?  Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 8:14 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 22, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 10:26 PM) 



DANIEL HESIDENCE


28 WARING ROAD, NBGH







(65-3-13) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an Interpretation of 185-19-C and/or area variances for one and combined side yard setbacks, the rear yard setback and the maximum lot building coverage to convert a vacant garage to a 1-family residence and a Special Permit to conduct a home occupation use as an artist studio.   

Chairperson Cardone: On the application Daniel Hesidence, 28 Waring Road, seeking area variances for one and combined side yard setbacks, the rear yard setback and the maximum lot building coverage. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: I think its going to be a big improvement to the property and he's not going to run a business out of there.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah, just for clarification purposes the Special Permit application request has been withdrawn, right?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: Right. 

Mr. Manley: I think by changing this to a home also ensures that in the future there's no plumbing business that's operated out of there. I mean, if this isn't converted to a residence what does the future hold for this property and I think that, you know, the neighbors have a choice either have a residence or, you know, risk having maybe a business that you don't want in the future and I think this would be a huge improvement.

Mr. McKelvey: They have to take care of that septic tank too.

Mr. Hughes: You have no problem working that out with the neighbor?

Mr. Maher: One question though, Jerry, how did it get to be a subdivided piece of property with an accessory building only on it? 

Mr. Canfield: It's nothing Mike that we had done, that building was constructed I would say in the 30's or the 40's. It's constructed I believe with cinderblock.

Mr. Hughes: It is cinderblock.

Mr. Canfield: Which they don't make anymore but that building has been there that long.

Mr. Maher: When they broke the lots off it didn't make a difference that you were creating a new non-conforming lot though?

Mr. Canfield: No, no.

Mr. Hughes: They probably did it before we had zoning.

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, yup.

Ms. Eaton: I'll make a motion for approval. 

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 
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DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.  


             





 (Time Noted – 10:28 PM)
ZBA MEETING – APRIL 22, 2010             (Time Noted – 8:15 PM) 

NOWAB HOTELS CORPORATION
RTE 17K/WEST OF RTE 300, NBGH







(95-1-16 & 17) IB/A ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the side yard setback and for signage for a subdivision of the lot and to build a hotel.  

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Nowab Hotels Corporation.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out fourteen registered letters, fourteen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. our next applicant is ready, if we have conversations going on please take them out into the hallway. 

Mr. Cordisco: Good evening, hello, it's nice to see you again I'm Dominic Cordisco.

Chairperson Cardone: All right a moment, Betty?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes?

Chairperson Cardone: Did you talk about the mailings?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, I did.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Cordisco: Allow me to introduce myself again, I'm Dominic Cordisco from the law firm of Drake, Loeb and I'm here on behalf of Nowab Hotels Group which is the applicant before you tonight. They are the current owner of the Quality Inn on Route…

Chairperson Cardone: If you could talk more directly into the microphone?

Mr. Cordisco: O.K. Sure, sure I understand. They are the owner of the currently Quality Inn on Route 17K and this is a proposal that's been pending before the Planning Board for the subdivision of an existing 12-acre site to create a 7-acre parcel for the Quality Inn with an additional 5-acre parcel for the Holiday Inn. I'm here with our project team tonight, which includes A.J. Copolla who is the design architect and also Justin Dates from Mazur Consulting who is the engineer and also from Nowab is the owner is Asif Javaid. He is also here as well and we would like to make a presentation to you. As I mentioned we've been before the Planning Board and have received concept approval for this proposal but then we need a number of variances. It's two in particular and one is in regards to a setback from between the two lots that we're proposing and the other is in regards to signage. The signage requirements of course are based on your requirement decided by the frontage. I'm going to let Justin Dates speak further about that in terms of the full needs of the site. Of course, if we could have complied with the signage requirements we would have but this proposal for the new hotel is proposed to be a Holiday Inn and Holiday Inn has very specific guidelines and requirements that they require for signage on their future buildings. And so we are working within those constraints and we're here before you tonight. So at this point I would like to turn it over to Mr. Dates.

Mr. Dates: Hi, my name is Justin Dates from Mazur Consulting. I'm just going orient to everybody what the applicant is proposing. Just to orientate with the plan north is facing up, on the east side we have our access to Route 300 and then our frontage along Route 17K. It is a two lot commercial subdivision. We are proposing a lot for the existing Quality Inn, which is on the west side and then proposed Lot #2 is for the new 140-room Holiday Inn. In creating the lots and meeting the bulk requirements for the Holiday Inn which we do comply with, there is a side yard setback on the existing Quality Inn building up in this corner to the rear here which is deficient of the required 50-feet. We are at 42.3-feet so 7.7-feet deficient of the 50-feet required and that is based upon the location of the existing building and meeting all the requirements that were asked of us for the new Holiday Inn. I think I'd like to for the signage portion I'm going to turn it over to A.J. Copolla.

Mr. Copolla: Thank you Justin. I'm going to through kind of a lot of numbers but these numbers are best summarized in the drawings that we provided to the Board. I'm going to first look at signs sheet that is labeled Sign 1. Sign 1 deals with the signage on the Holiday Inn site and then Sign 2 deals with the signage on the Quality Inn site. Real briefly before I get into that again what we're proposing is a 4-story hotel, 120-rooms, this is a full service hotel, with a full kitchen, catering hall. It's not a Holiday Inn Express with kind of those amended, which doesn't have all those amenities. This is a full service hotel. So I'm going to go right down the signage chart and try and make sense of this so that everybody understands. Basically there are existing signs there and there some of the existing signs are going to remain and then there's new signage that we're…that we're proposing. So on the Union Avenue entrance side there is an existing sign, a Quality Inn sign right now that existing Quality Inn sign would be removed. There's a second smaller Quality Inn sign that's going to be proposed there that's going to basically point you up the hill. We have access on 17K and 300 to both hotels. Then there will be a new 13 ½-foot high Holiday Inn monument sign proposed where the traffic light is on Union Avenue and that's basically in keeping with Holiday Inn's corporate requirements, with their colors. And we also did a study of the existing signage on that section of Route 300 and Union Avenue looked at the other larger hotel signage's there for the Ramada Inn and the Hampton Inn. Those existing signage are much larger than the signage that we're proposing here. So I think that's important. So further on down this chart here there's a large existing billboard that's up the hillside here. That sign is proposed to be removed. There's an existing Quality Inn sign on the property that's also going to be removed that's going to be closer to the Holiday Inn. That’s going to be relocated again right here. Then there are three-signage channel lettering on the building itself. So there's one on the east end, one on the south end and one on the west end and those are noted on the elevation drawings and shown in the directory here, all the signage that the Board is aware of. All the signage counts. So this whole table shows each sign, what the sign is in terms of the size of the lettering, the coloring, the lettering type, the height and width of the lettering. We've done a square footage tally that shows what's going to remain and then subtracted what's going to be removed the total at the bottom here. But basically then we have 442 sq. ft. that's the proposed signage. We're removing 281 square footage the net square footage of signage for all the signage that I just mentioned is 161 sq. ft. Basically by the numbers we're only allowed one half square foot per lineal foot of road frontage. We only have 58-lineal feet of road so that only allows us 29 sq.ft. of signage. So the net variance request 161 we're netting minus what we're actually allowed, the 29 gives us a variance of 132 sq. ft. So kind of have to digest that for a second. The other side is a little simpler. Again we're proposing two lots, two different hotels. The Quality Inn side, which is basically dealing with the signage on 17K, this signage, there's an existing monument sign that is there now, a large sign probably everybody is familiar with, that is going to remain. There's going to be a restaurant sign that's going to be added to that existing monument.

Mr. Cordisco: (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Dominic, I'm sorry; you are going to have to grab that microphone.    

Mr. Cordisco: Yeah, I just wanted to expand on that there is an existing Doolittle's Restaurant sign that's there that is going to be eliminated and the Doolittle's portion of it is going to be added to the existing Quality Inn signs.  

Mr. Copolla: Sure. Thank you. We are going to add another Holiday Inn monument sign of 7' 6" high that's designated as business Sign #2. That is going to be right next to that existing monument sign and there's an existing billboard sign that you may or may not be aware of that's on the back side of the hotel right now and that's proposed to be to remain. And again, all of the square footages for those four signs are outlined, I'm looking and Sign-2 that plan. So if you go down that list you'll see the four signs. I think our variance request for this lot is just for what we're adding new. The 50- sq. ft., which is the business Sign #2, the rest of this signage is basically existing to remain or in the one case being relocated. So our variance request for this lot is 50-sq.ft. that's the sign that we're adding if that makes sense. So…so that's it in a nutshell. We have photos of the existing signage on the site now and I also have photos of the other hotels in the area that are adjacent to our site. 

Ms. Drake: I have a question in reference to sign sheet Sign 2, you're saying that your variance is for the 50-feet but what is the…and you're allowed 210 sq. ft. allowable based on the road frontage. 

Mr. Copolla: Correct.

Ms. Drake: What is your total sign area plus with our without the 50-foot?

Mr. Copolla: You'd have to add. I mean, we're over, I can see we're over probably 2100 if you look at the four signage, the four signs there.

Ms. Drake: You don't know what that total is by chance? 

Mr. Donovan: Well, it's probably 2000 or it's in that...

Mr. Copolla: It's probably 2100 you can see 32, 50, 940, the billboard is almost 1200 so call that 9, 2100.  


Mr. Donovan: So I guess just kind of piggybacking on Brenda's question is the for the variances the subdivision or are you…if we take into consideration both road frontages and the existing signs are you out of compliance now? 

Mr. Copolla: Well its pre-existing non-conforming.

Mr. Cordisco: Correct. 

Mr. Copolla: Even looking at the site right now without…without the new hotel we're pre-existing non-conforming.

Mr. Hughes: By what standard?

Mr. Copolla: The lineal feet of the road we only have 58 on the one side and our frontage on 17K is 420…yeah 421 that's correct.

Mr. Hughes: How is that pre-existing non-conforming? The Codes been here since '57, those buildings aren't that old.

Mr. Copolla: I mean I can't answer that. It is today what it is.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel?

Mr. Manley: Yeah but the big question is how did you get…? You're saying it's pre-existing non-conforming. Pre-existing non-conforming means it predates zoning. This building doesn't predate our Zoning Ordinance so that means that those signs have appeared after… 

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. It's not pre-existing.

Mr. Manley: …the structures were built which means Permits were never taken out on those signs.

Mr. Cordisco: Well that actually I don't know whether that's the case, I mean it could have been that a…at a prior time this Board granted variances for that signage. The signage variances are a typical request in this Town because of the strict limitations you have on frontage. I just don't know. I know that the building is old enough that I probably was, you know, watching Star Wars when that building went up so I don't know, you know, if and when at that time what level approvals were. What we mean by pre-existing, non-conforming is that the signs are there so what we're trying to do is calculate based on what the existing signage is and what we're adding to it.

Mr. Manley: Right, but in the request that you said you only need 50-feet and in the other area you only need what did you tell me for the first one 161? That's really not accurate because you actually have got 2100 sq. ft. of signs and you're allowed 200 and something. That's really like a 1900 sq. ft. variance you are looking for.

Mr. Cordisco: I would agree with you if we were proposing new building and for the…where there is no Quality Inn now. The Quality Inn exists; the signage exists so what we're proposing is to add to it. And that's the net that we've shown in our application.

Mr. Maher: Well as far as the net goes, A.J. is that a double sided sign? 

Mr. Copolla: A…

Mr. Maher: #2.

Mr. Copolla: Yes, a…

Ms. Drake: Please use the microphone. 

Mr. Copolla: Oh, I'm sorry. 

Mr. Maher: It's 6'4" x 7'6" is the size of it?

Mr. Copolla: Yes. 

Mr. Maher: Which is 50 sq. ft., correct? Times two.

Mr. Hughes: Yep, it's 100.

Mr. Copolla: 42…50, yeah, so…

Mr. Maher: So it's actually 100 sq.ft. double sided.

Mr. Copolla: Oh it was double faced. I see down here and I see 25 sq.ft. if you look on the bottom here.  

Mr. Hughes: Isn't it just for the one lens that your finger is on and the sign above it?

Mr. Copolla: Well again it's…

Mr. Hughes: That's the way I read it. That's the way…

Mr. Copolla: It's how it's calculated. If you read the note its tiny, tiny proposed double faced illuminated 25 sq.ft. so…

Mr. Hughes: I need to rewind the tape here. Counsel? We're not naming the cat what it is here. This is not a pre-existing non-conforming situation. The sign is there. It's existing but its not the legal term that you're using.

Mr. Donovan: Well I guess the answer is we don't know.

Mr. Hughes: What, we…I know the building isn't built before '57 and we've had Code since then so it can't be. 

Mr. Donovan: Well…I…don't know…

Mr. Hughes: I was there. 

Mr. Donovan: I wasn't. 

Mr. Hughes: I know.

Mr. Donovan: I don't know what Permits are or are not in existence.

Mr. Hughes: But now having said that, he's barking up the wrong tree now. We've got a…he's looking for a variance and I would like to know how we got to the existing sign that's there to be as large as it is. If there was another variance that was given from a prior Board we need to know how we got there before we go and piggyback and make a mistake here. 

Mr. Donovan: I mean the only…the other thing for the Board to consider is we did confront this not too terribly long ago with I'll just refer to it as Alan Axelrod's building because…

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, on Route 300.

Mr. Hughes: The same thing went on there.

Mr. Donovan: And ultimately what this Board did and I think wisely is…you didn't know how it got there, we couldn't demonstrate how it got there but you put a cap on the signage. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so we've explained the borders and where it really lays and it's not pre-existing. It's not non-conforming. 

Mr. Cordisco: Well that's fine and I don't…I'm not just to be clear, I'm not hanging my hat or relying on that.

Mr. Hughes: I'm not getting into semantics either…

Mr. Cordisco: Right, right.

Mr. Hughes: …I just want to make sure we're calling the thing what it is.

Mr. Cordisco: Right, it certainly is existing, you know, at what level it got approval in terms of whether it required variances or whether it was approved by the Planning Board at the time I just…I can't say. And I don't want to speculate this because I'm not privy to that information.

Chairperson Cardone: Jerry, do you have…excuse me, Jerry do you have any information on this?

Mr. Canfield: A…yeah, I think there's a couple of things going on there and I think Mr. Manley and Dave both hit the nail right on the head. I think the issues are being clouded with the verbiage of pre-existing non-conforming. That's not the case here. I don't believe there's any provisions in the Code for signage that deal with that so I think maybe it would be a benefit to everybody to remove that nomenclature. The issue at hand is that, yes, there is a total square footage of signage that the applicant is proposing and what's there but I think that it would be best that the Board look at what the applicant is looking for as a total square footage. Quick calculations on the first sheet is like total 442 sq. ft. and on the back sheet is a total of 2206 sq. ft. I think it would be in the best interest for everybody if the applicant would request the variance for the total square footage of the signage. In the past, we have done just that. Not so much as how we derived to this point. I don't know that that's going to prove benefit to anyone. At the break, I can offer for some of the Board Members I can go look at the Building Department records. Quick check and see what was issued, how they've arrived at this point. However I don't know that it will serve any purpose. The fact still remains is that we do have a total square footage of signage for each site that they're looking for and a…for proper enforcement and clarification should the Board choose to issue the variance the total square footage should be in the resolution. So it's enforceable from this point forward. I hope that answers your question.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, thank you. 

Mr. Cordisco: Just to be clear on that particular point, we were not trying to hide anything in regards to this. In fact, the signs are in plain sight. All we were trying to do is demonstrate the difference between what's there now and the additional signage that we would be asking for. If you want a calculation, for what's going to be there completely after if the Board decides to grant the approval and we get site plan approval then we can certainly provide that. So we're not trying to hide anything here. It's just that we were trying to show you the demonstration between the total that's out there now and what we're going to be adding.

Mr. Hughes: Anthony, do you have off your take off sheet real sign numbers?

Mr. Copolla: Yeah, I mean…

Mr. Hughes: The total?

Mr. Copolla: The total is here for a…Sign #1. This was done on an Excel Spreadsheet and if you just go down the list again all the numbers are there. It's 442 gross, 9 is what we're removing, the 281, that leaves us a net of 161.

Mr. Hughes: And you're asking in total for 2648.

Mr. Copolla: You…well…

Mr. Hughes: That's what I have when I added them all up.

Mr. Copolla: Well it's the 161 and then if you add the four signs on the other side. I didn't add…if you added these two to that.

Mr. Hughes: Well can you give us a total figure?

Mr. Copolla: Well I don't have a calculator. You'd have to add these four.

Mr. Hughes: If you give me the numbers I'll tell you the answer.

Mr. Copolla: 32 plus 50 plus 940 plus 1184.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Mr. Copolla: I mean, the only thing I want to throw in there is that these are proposed to be two separate lots.

Mr. Hughes: 2206.

Mr. Manley: Earlier when you started your presentation you had stated that the hotel was going to be 120 rooms but yet in the information that the Planning Board has here and its dated August 20, 2009 it says 140. Has there been a change in the number of rooms?

Mr. Copolla: It's 120 rooms. Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: You also said in your narrative when you opened that there was going to be kitchens in every one of these rooms?

Mr. Copolla: I didn't say that. We've already been to the Planning Board. The Planning Board asked that question. That's not what I said at all. I want to be clear about that.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. you said they were full kitchens.

Ms. Drake: No.

Mr. Cordisco: No I don't think we said anything about kitchens.

Mr. Hughes: Really.

Mr. Copolla: I said this was going to be a full service hotel with a public kitchen and…

Mr. Hughes: I thought you mentioned a full kitchen in each room of the 120 rooms.

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Ms. Drake: No.

Mr. Cordisco: No. There will be a kitchen in a restaurant.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, what is say they're allowed to do in that one with kitchens? 25% is the most?

Mr. Canfield: 25%, correct.

Mr. Hughes: I must have heard things then I don't know. I thought you said that there was.

Chairperson Cardone: I think he was referring to the main kitchen that would service the restaurant.  

Mr. Copolla: That's correct.

Mr. Hughes: So you have a full kitchen to serve the public in the restaurant?

Mr. Cordisco: Right and that would be the only kitchen.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Drake: Use the microphone.

Mr. Hughes: So there's no kitchen in the 120-rooms?

Mr. Copolla: In each room there is going to be a mini-frig and a microwave.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Copolla: And we've presented that to the Planning Board and based on their opinion that is not…it is certainly not a kitchen.  

Mr. Hughes: All right. Thank you.

Ms. Drake: Out of curiosity is each lot going to have sufficient parking for each hotel? I know that's not really our issue but I just wanted to ask that question.

Mr. Cordisco: That's a good question. I'll let Justin answer that.

Mr. Dates: We have provided on the entire site the required parking for each of the hotels.

Ms. Drake: Under each own lot or…?

Mr. Dates: No there is parking on lot #1 for the proposed hotel so there would be an access and parking easement between the two lots…

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Dates: …to share some of that parking.

Mr. Hughes: And the forty-six spaces of bank that you spoke about?

Mr. Dates: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Are they on both lots or one lot?

Mr. Dates: No they are on the Holiday Inn, the proposed Holiday Inn lot which is being banked basically that there's a substantial span of trees in that area that by banking that we would be saving that in an effort to provide screening for some of that parking for the Holiday Inn. And the Planning Board was in favor of that to preserve that screening if possible. 

Ms. Drake: I know the existing Quality sign the pylon sign is existing. Is there any option or considered in replacing that sign with something smaller being all the other signs are so much smaller to reduce the size, the extent of the variance? 

Mr. Copolla: I think part of that answer lies in the fact of what the Quality Inn will eventually become and the Planning Board had an interest in that. In other words, our proposal to them was for basically the Holiday Inn. I know Mr. Javaid maybe can speak to that a little bit but I think when that hotel is eventually redeveloped or torn down and replaced after this building is built then that would be part of another application for that site plan and the signage, I think, would be considered at that time.

Mr. Hughes: Is this a phased project you're working on?

Mr. Copolla: No. We're presenting to the Planning Board everything that you see here which is keeping the Quality Inn in operation and the way it is right now and adding the full service Holiday Inn. All I'm saying is at some future point after this building is built that building probably be…

Mr. Cordisco: It would renovated, it would be remodeled and renovated with the rooms actually be expanded and conversion of the restaurant space into additional meeting or office space because we don't…the two hotels are going to remain under common ownership. We don't need two restaurants out there if we're going to have a brand new restaurant site. That will be where the traffic is drawn for that particular use and there would be better use of the Quality Inn site, the Quality Inn site to remodel it at that time. But that would be done after the Holiday Inn is constructed.

Ms. Drake: But if we granted a variance now for the total signage for everything that's there regardless of how it got there then if and when the Quality Inn gets renovated or they change that sign they'll still have a variance for that same size sign and that signage will not be addressed at that time because they will already have a variance for it. So I'm asking now would it be considered…would you consider reducing that very large sign to something a little bit smaller in keeping with the other…the Holiday Inn sign? Because it actually makes the Quality Inn so much bigger than the Holiday Inn. 

Mr. Copolla: I mean, I don't know not to speak but we…I think we would look at all four signs that we are proposing. Three of the signs that are on that site right now, there's a billboard sign and then there's the large monument sign on 17K. I mean, we might maybe consider both of those, one of those if you understand what I am saying.

Ms. Drake: No, sorry.

Mr. Cordisco: One of the things that was rejected by Holiday Inn corporate was a combination of the two signs. When we were wrestling with making this application one of the things that we thought about was replacing that sign, the Quality Inn sign and having a joint sign at that point showing both Quality Inn and Holiday Inn. That was absolutely rejected flat out by Holiday Inn saying that they required their own stand alone sign a…to direct traffic towards the Holiday Inn. So at this point there are no plans to replace the Quality Inn sign because it has to remain and its going to take over the additional function of at least for now pointing people to the Doolittle's Restaurant. Doolittle's Restaurant is a separate sign now. That's going to be coming down and the advertisement will be placed on the Quality Inn sign.

Mr. Manley: I'd just like to go, Mr. Cordisco, I'd like to go back to the letter that you sent to the Zoning Board on March 16th. In that letter again it said construction of 140-room Holiday Inn Hotel and the testimony from everybody here tonight keeps saying 120 so you know…

Mr. Cordisco: That was, if that was the case then that was a mistake on my part.

Mr. Manley: O.K. because its also consistent, your letter is consistent with that testimony within the Planning Board so I really…

Mr. Cordisco: There maybe a confusion, I thought that the Quality Inn was an existing 120-room facility and that the Holiday Inn is proposed to be 140.

Mr. Manley: If the Zoning Board were to grant a variance would there be any issue putting in there that this variance is being granted for 120-rooms so that if you go to the Planning Board and its 140-rooms that…

Chairperson Cardone: That really has nothing to do with the size of the sign though.

Mr. Hughes: That's true.

Chairperson Cardone: I don't think that legally we would be able to make a stipulation like that. 

Mr. Manley: How about with the setbacks though? With the setbacks, that's also a variance, correct? With the lot line.

Mr. Donovan: Well, I mean, if we…if you decide to grant the variance, I mean, you could sure jimmy around with the rooms but make it room smaller or larger but I don't know what the nexus is between the condition we imposed and the sign variance application or that setback variance application. If we were asking…if they were asking us for a parking variance then the number of rooms would be important. But since they're not asking us for that I don't…I don't see the connection between the condition and the variance being requested.

Mr. Canfield: If I may Dave though? There is a significance of 120 or 140 rooms. Jim is right, the Planning Board minutes reflect the application was for 140 rooms. The project narrative to the Zoning Board states 140 rooms. If the applicant is telling you now its 120 rooms there is a significant difference and how it further impacts the project is is that you're daily sewage flows that were submitted to the Planning Board were based on 140, the parking calculations were based on 140 rooms so there is ramifications but then this difference of 20 room will make a difference and impact this project.

Mr. Donovan: I don't think there is any question about that. I think the issue for us is whether or not a condition that we impose should this Board decide to grant the sign variance and the setback variance does it somehow relate to the number of rooms? And that's where I'm not finding the connection there but for the...

Mr. Canfield: You're 100% right.

Mr. Donovan: …for the Planning Board it's a huge issue obviously, yeah.

Mr. Canfield: Yes and as a matter of record though I think that both should coincide. I'm believing it may be a typo or someone's got misinformation on 120 rooms.

Mr. Cordisco: It could be. 

Mr. Hughes: It's a reduction nonetheless so it really can't put us in jeopardy. And I agree with counsel that it really doesn't have a bearing. The signage is based upon footage and …

Mr. Donovan: Yeah, three strikes and I'm out so don't do that again. That's twice tonight.

Mr. Hughes: I won't scare you and I'll lay off you now. But, you know because if there's a reduction and if it’s a misprint I would suggest that we write a letter to sharpen up the communication and make sure everybody knows what's going on.  

Mr. Donovan: And again I guess Jim's question is, it’s a huge issue. The owner is here. I'm sure he can tell us how many rooms.

Mr. Javaid: I think it's going 120-rooms. The (inaudible) was when we first proposed the building it was 140 rooms but some of the rooms were combined and we made suites and when rephrased the application we did not get the count because two rooms became one on certain floor on certain side of the building but I think the final number will be close to 120 if not exactly 120.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. But for the issues Mr. Canfield is bringing up and Mr. Manley is bringing up at the Planning Board you're going to have to…it's going to have to be 122 or 119 or its going to have to be a…

Mr. Cordisco: We'll have to have a finite number at that time.

Mr. Donovan: Yes, right.

Mr. Cordisco: I would say that in that regard however if we did propose as I understand it 140 rooms to the Planning Board and we calculated parking based on that amount if we're going down by a reduction of 20 rooms to where…that's a net benefit that favors us in terms of our parking and our sewer demand and other aspects. But we can finalize that and certainly when we're before the Planning Board.

Mr. Hughes: One of the things that exists here though I'm really not comfortable with segmented thing that goes on about O.K. well they're going to revitalize this later and they're going to do the other hotel over. Are you going to be back again for more signage requests then? 


Mr. Cordisco: Just to be clear, there are no present plans to remodel or renovate the Quality Inn. Those plans would only take place and be developed after the Holiday Inn is up and running. The Quality Inn is going to stay so. It's not segmented in the sense that we have plans in our back pocket that we're just not showing you at this time. 

Mr. Maher: Was it not discussed at the Planning Board meeting about changing some of the rooms over there?

Mr. Cordisco: Yes, yes, making the rooms larger as I had mentioned.

Mr. Maher: Were there offices mentioned also?   

Mr. Cordisco: I believe so. I'm not sure. I wasn't there. 

Mr. Maher: What's the current Quality Inn, does it still have the Quality Inn moniker on it?

Mr. Cordisco: It does.

Mr. Maher: And what is the current clientele base?

Mr. Javaid: It's a chain and (inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you hold the microphone a little closer it's not picking up. 

Mr. Javaid: We have corporate business, we have leisure business and a combination of everything else, its about 20% in each category, people come, construction workers, corporate business, sales, and then just families on vacations and so on.    

Mr. Maher: Is there any Social Services Section Eight housing going on there?

Mr. Javaid: No, no.

Mr. Maher: None.

Mr. Javaid: No.

Mr. McKelvey: There was a sign out in front something about Knight's something last week.

Mr. Maher: It said Knight's Inn on it.

Mr. McKelvey: Knight's Inn.

Mr. Javaid: That's what we are trying to change into, just the franchise, not the building.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, oh O.K. and then it's not going to be Quality Inn then in the end. I mean it doesn't matter to us. 

Mr. Javaid: We didn't want an issue if we started calling it Knight's Inn until it physically happened but then you would say what is this?

Mr. McKelvey: No, I understand.

Mr. Javaid: But its just changing the franchise from one to the other not even the franchise just the brand name. It's going to be Knight's Inn rather than Quality Inn.

Ms. Eaton: Is it open right now? Is the Quality Inn or Knight's Inn open right now?

Mr. Javaid: Yes, yes it's open. It's open.

Mr. McKelvey: So the Quality Inn sign is front is going to be changed to Knight's Inn then? 

Mr. Javaid: Yes. 

Ms. Eaton: If you are granted the variance when do you expect to start construction?

Mr. Javaid: Once we get everything in place and get the financing together. We are supposed to do it by the end of summer.

Ms. Eaton: The end of summer?

Mr. Javaid: Yes. That's…we have some guidelines from Holiday Inn.

Ms. Eaton: Do you plan to do anything with the road coming up from 300 in the near future? That's in pretty much disarray right now. 

Mr. Javaid: The road is on the…

Mr. Cordisco: That is proposed to be improved from 300 all the way into the Holiday Inn site. 

Ms. Eaton: Lot of garbage around up in there it's very unsightly right now. I noticed a lot of old furniture laying out on the side of the road. 

Mr. Javaid: After the winter everything is cleaned up and I don't see anything. I drove this morning there, there's no… 

Ms. Eaton: I was there on Monday.

Mr. Javaid: Maybe I missed something I'll go there again tomorrow and clean up if there is anything left.  

Ms. Eaton: I think it would be a good idea.

Mr. Cordisco: That may not be on your site. The access drive does go along the property line so it may be that whatever you're talking about that out there may not be on our property. 

Ms. Eaton: O.K.

Mr. Cordisco: But he will double check.

Ms. Eaton: O.K. Thank you. On the left as you go around the loop. 

Mr. Javaid: Yes.

Mr. Cordisco: And getting back, if I may? To the issue regarding the overall amount of signage when you're going through the exercise of adding everything up to come up with a whole gross amount of what the future signage would be at the site one of the big numbers that you're seeing there is a result of the existing billboard sign which is not currently being used for advertising. Just if it is concerning the Board Mr. Javaid has told me that he is willing to eliminate that billboard in favor if that was an issue for the Board and that actually reduces you down by over 1100 sq. ft. It would be a significant reduction for the overall site. 

Mr. Hughes: Well one of the things that I see here is one of your Holiday Inn signs is 30-feet long and another one is 24-feet long and then you have the billboard and all the other stuff. When you add them all up I come up with 2206 and you're supposed to be allowed 442. That's five times, that's 500% is what you're asking for and that's why we're going through this with a fine tooth come.

Mr. Copolla: Well I mean…

Mr. Hughes: It's a considerable and a substantial increase of what you're allowed to have.

Mr. Copolla: We can go through that with Code Compliance or Jerry's office or whomever sign by sign. We believe we've outlined everything as Dominic said. All the numbers on here, we believe the numbers to be accurate. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you come up with 2206?

Mr. Copolla: That was what we added before is what you're saying?  

Mr. McKelvey: If you take down the billboard you are going to eliminate 1100 sq. ft.

Mr. Hughes: So you'll only be…

Mr. Copolla: Half of that, I mean from the total site.

Mr. Hughes: …900 over then instead of…

Mr. Donovan: Are we talking which lot are we talking both lots combined?

Mr. Cordisco: Yes, and you're…that's one of the issues as well.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah, because we'd have to separate that out because they are two separate lots. 

Mr. Hughes: So, do you own the roads and the reciprocity with the parking on both places?

Mr. Cordisco: Yes there would be common ownership between the two but in case that there wasn't future common ownership as part of the Planning Board approval we would certainly have cross easements to ensure and maintenance agreements so that the…if there was separate ownership in the future that those areas would be maintained.

Mr. Hughes: Well the elimination of the 1100 feet is good for openers but you still have like a 900…do you got a percentage on that?

Mr. Cordisco: Mr. Hughes, that's why I'm always hesitant to suggest something out there like that because a…you know, good for openers is actually a significant reduction.

Mr. Hughes: It is but not when you consider the whole package. I know when I sell my truck and I want six grand for it I start with seventy-five hundred on the window. It's hard to work them up. 

Mr. Cordisco: Fair enough fair enough.

Mr. Hughes: It's easy to work them down.

Mr. Cordisco: But I still think that its important that the Board keep focus on the fact that there is existing signage out there that is going to remain and you're looking at ultimately what you have to decide is how much additional signage is appropriate for this site. 

Chairperson Cardone: If I could for the record read the recommendation from the Orange County Department of Planning which is Local Determination.

Mr. Cordisco: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Jim, you had something else? 

Mr. Manley: I wanted to ask is the distance between the old…the Quality Inn that is going to be remaining and the Holiday Inn is approximately how many feet? 

Mr. Dates: It's probably around 110 at the closest point.

Mr. Manley: 110 feet? 

Mr. Dates: I do believe, yes.

Mr. Manley: And is there going to be a drive, I can't really tell, is there going to be a drive between the two of them there?

Mr. Dates: Yes, there is an existing parking along this side of the Quality Inn here so this would connect through to the back to access parking in the rear and then the access drive coming up from 300 does circulate a two-way. 

Mr. Manley: And its two-way not one?

Mr. Dates: Two-way, correct, yes two-way.

Mr. Manley: So you're looking about 40-feet of pavement? 42-feet of pavement?

Mr. Dates: No more like with double side parking it's about 64.

Mr. Manley: O.K. Jerry, is the…from the Fire Department standpoint?

Mr. Canfield: At the Planning Board level our office did review it with the jurisdictional Fire Department and the project does meet or exceed the Fire Code requirements which in a building of this height the driving width is 30-feet wide which this does meet.

Mr. Manley: Thank you.

Ms. Drake: On the site plan there could you show me the variance is for the side yard? We actually didn't get that plan.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah, we have the sign set but we don't have the subdivision.

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Hughes: This is what we have.

Ms. Drake: Just the sign set.

Mr. Cordisco: My apologies.

Mr. Dates: The side yard setback that's deficient is on this side of the proposed lot for the Quality Inn. The property line itself between the two lots jogs kind of around the proposed Holiday Inn building. So it does meet all the setback requirements, the Holiday Inn and the one deficiency is right here, the side yard of the Quality Inn.

Mr. Cordisco: By 7.7.

Mr. Dates: 7.7.

Mr. McKelvey: The Holiday Inn sign you're putting on 17K is going to be on Quality's property?

Mr. Cordisco: Yes, the Holiday Inn site…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, I'm sorry. Thank you.

Mr. Cordisco: Yes. The Holiday Inn will not have any frontage along 17K. There would have to be an easement in order for them to put that sign there and to maintain it. 

Mr. Hughes: And you didn't include the reciprocity easement in this request here? Doesn't that have to go before Zoning Dave?

Mr. Donovan: The reciprocity for what?

Mr. Hughes: For the sign being on the other guy's property and a way to get in and out of it. We've had them come here before that's why I ask.

Mr. Donovan: A variance from what…there would need to be…

Mr. Hughes: When they did Target, the sign was on the banks property and the restaurant was on another property, they had a whole zoo going on there.

Mr. Donovan: I don't think that we…unless they need a variance for the size of the sign that wouldn't come to us to put it on someone else's property. They'd need…

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: …whatever approval from the Building Department and whatever permission from the property owner.

Mr. Cordisco: And you could impose as a condition of any approval that we provide the easement showing that we have the right to put the sign, the Holiday Inn sign on the Quality Inn site.

Mr. Hughes: I think that's more legal and planning than us. 

Mr. Cordisco: Understood. But I just make sure, you know, so that the Town is aware that the rights are actually there when everything gets typed up.   

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? 

Mr. Kelson: My name is Todd Kelson, Town of Newburgh. I don't know where to begin. I find myself in the surprising position of first of all agreeing 100% with Mr. Hughes.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, careful.

Mr. Kelson: Because my math is terrible also that's why I brought a calculator over there. The first thing I noticed, I looked at the variances that they, the sign, we're talking about signs now to begin with. The sign variance, they need 132-feet   and I did a quick down and dirty 132 divided by the 29 that's a 455% variance and I don't know what…how that could not be considered substantial. I think that's a very substantial variance. I'm very concerned about, you know, the change in the character of the neighborhood actually a couple of the things. An assertion was made that the property is going to remain in common ownership. It's nice to say that but this Board has no guarantee and will get no guarantee from anybody that that will take place. There's references to cross-easements and I'm sure there will be financing in this project and we always fall back to what we know and, you know, a project that failed ends up with a foreclosure, an easement gets cut off and then where do we stand? Conceivably the project could end up with inadequate parking unless appropriate arrangements are made and I'm not sure how that even be done. I can't imagine a lender agreeing to an arrangement like that. Traffic, the site is going to access on Route 17K on property that is not owned by the applicant. Everybody has seen the condition of that road. I don't know whether that road is maintained by anybody. It looks like it's certainly not right now. That right of way is going to be overburdened and curious whether anybody has talked to the D.O.T. about the effect of the traffic from that. That light is already difficult. I sometimes use that light and I find coming from there it's going to be quite difficult. One of the things that was mentioned about parking was an area that's being banked. There's trees there and that's being used as a reserve area for parking and that's all very nice but one of the concerns in the area is a steep, there's a very steep slope and you may say this belongs at the Planning Board but it doesn't because it impacts. It's an issue that impacts adjoining property and that is where is the water going to go? Right now the area or the bulk of it…correct me if I'm mistaken but a large portion of the area that's being discussed is currently not improved or minimally improved. There's going to be a lot of impervious surfaces placed on there. I saw on plan some…some drainage structures but my concern is that there's no question that if that parking, if that reserve parking is used there's going to very adverse impact. And you know water flows down and there's a very steep grade from this property down to Route 300 and that water is going to have to go somewhere and where is it going to go? It's going to go across the highway and onto the adjoining properties. So I think that it cannot be said that this…the granting of these variances will not have an adverse impact on environmental conditions. I think it will be quite serious. There are references, going back to signs; there are references to the requirements of the Holiday Inn, corporate requirements. The applicant stated that this is Quality Inn the current hotel that he has it is now a Knight's Inn. What I was going to reference and correct me if I'm wrong but in the course of maybe five years I think four sets of different signs have appeared on that building. So right now they're telling you that there is going to be a Holiday Inn there and those are the requirements of the Holiday Inn. I don't think any guarantees are being offered to anybody that the Holiday Inn is what's going to be actually located there or that the requirements of a different franchise will be different. I'm of course also concerned about the status of the existing signs. Mr. Canfield knows because he's been before this Board and he's pointed out issues where he finds an illegal use and if any of these signs are not Permitted the applicant in any given case has been criticized and I know I've been by this Board so I would urge this Board to look very carefully at the existing signs before granting any relief's. O.K. Those are the comments that I have right now. Thank you.

Mr. McKelvey: Well drainage would not be this Board's. That would be the Planning Board.

Mr. Kelson: Well I would respectfully disagree that if the Board granted the variance O.K.…

Mr. McKelvey: They have to go back before the Planning Board. 

Mr. Kelson: Yes, they do have to go back to the Planning Board but this Board has to take a look and determine whether the granting of a variance will have a environmental impact on the neighbors and that is within the purview of this Board. That's what the statute says this Board is supposed to do.

Mr. Cordisco: If I could address that particular point? If it pleases the Board? In regards to the stormwater requirements, we have designed the plans to accommodate both the State and the Town's requirements including the shadowed parking area. So even though we intend on leaving those trees we haven't failed to include it in plans to accommodate stormwaters from those areas. The State and Town requirements require us to design our system so that there is no net increase in the amount of stormwater that is flowing off of this particular site and we will meet those requirements. In terms of determining an adverse effect on the neighborhood as a result of these variances, the variance request is in regards to the signage and on that particular point I'd like to address something Mr. Kelson mentioned earlier we're not suggesting to you that this is not a substantial request. We know it’s a substantial request but substantiality on its own is not a factor that you can use to deny a variance. I'm sure your counsel knows that as well and there are plenty of cases that say that you can look at the percentage but the percentage itself shouldn't scare you and drive your decision. We know that this is a significant request. And to be honest, we could build a hotel actually out at this site and we could tweak it just a little bit and make it a little bit smaller so we didn't have a side yard variance and we could put no signs on it and we wouldn't need to be before at this Board at all. But we are before you because we have requirements. We do want to put in a Holiday Inn at this location and put signs on it so that people know that its there. 

Mr. Kelson: Well respectfully and actually that brings me to a point that I should have mentioned and that is one of the issues is can they achieve their result any other way and the answer is I'm sure they can and have chosen not to do so. O.K. They certainly do not have to build a hotel the way that they've designed it and I'm not sure why…why they weren't able to do that. A variance of 7-feet, they could…they could design this a different way. They've elected not to do so and they own the whole property so they cannot come to you and say, we couldn't find anything else we couldn't find the area. They draw this drawing however they wish to draw it. They've chosen to do it this way so to say they have a practical need is disingenuous they control the site.  

Mr. Hughes: Got nothing else.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other comments or questions? 

Mr. Donovan: Well, let me ask this question. Does the Board have any interest in having Code Compliance doing any research relative to the issuance of whatever signs may or may not have been there so we know what Permits may or may not have been granted?

Mr. Hughes: I always feel more comfortable having some homework that was done before and how we got to where we are today but that's just my opinion.               

Mr. Donovan: And I bring that up only because that's what we did in the most recent one that was before us so we could identify what had been granted, what not had been granted and then the Board determined to set a limit so in that instance every time a tenant was coming in or out they wouldn't come back to this Board except with the…kind of the admonition if you do come back to this Board don't expect to get any more slack so to speak. I mean that's one issue I just put out there whether or not the Board would like to see a copy of that map since we're asking to issue a side yard variance. We don't have a copy of that and then also kind of a…if we could have a calculation of the…for each lot the total what would be permitted just in terms of the road frontage, what's there now and what is the total being requested so we…everyone has a clear explanation, a clear understanding about what is being requested.

Mr. Cordisco: I think those are all excellent suggestions and if I may what I'd like to suggest is is that we will resubmit the plans. We will take…we will include a total amount for the signage so that its clear that what's going to be there at the end of the day. We are going to take off on the plans the billboard so you have that eliminated and that will be shown as an elimination on the plans. We'll provide you with the side yard setback plan as well so that you can see that and in the meantime perhaps we can do some research. We know that these are long standing signs at that location. I don't know what the research is going to show but at least at that point it could perhaps provide some…

Mr. Donovan: It may show nothing but at lease we've done our due diligence.

Mr. Cordisco: It might but at least…that's correct and on that…on towards that end where I was going with this is is that I think it would be appropriate to leave the Public Hearing open for next month so you can have that…have the comment on it and have public comment on those revised plans as well. 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we leave the hearing open until next month.         

Chairperson Cardone: Just one moment.

Mr. Kelson: If I may, just one, since Mr. Donovan made some very good points. I think, I would also, I think the members of the public and the Board would also be interested in seeing they've stated that they've reviewed the stormwater requirements with the D.O.T. and I imagine traffic requirements such as the site distances with the signs and it would be interesting to see whether or not…you know, what the outcome is, what the correspondence is and what the D.O.T. has told them on that 300 being a State Highway. 

Mr. Hughes: I'd like to add to that the applicant's professionals keep insisting that this is corporate Holiday Inn and all of that. That necessarily doesn't fly, you know, and if Holiday Inn is going to hold that corporate point they may lose out in the opportunity to have a good spot to have their place. Now I'll refer you to the Hess Station in Wappingers, in Fishkill right here, they insisted that they were going to do the corporate thing and they weren't allowed to do it. This is up to home rule, this is our Town and if there is a significant change or something substantial that is going to impact the neighborhood that's why you're here. There is something illegal going on here or you wouldn't be coming through that door.

Mr. Donovan: Well…

Mr. Hughes: So, well, if I could…

Mr. Donovan: You certainly may I'll (inaudible) myself.

Mr. Hughes: ...when you get your notion of what you think you're going to ask for you are going to live with that and you're not going to change it two months from now or three months from now because we've had this thing go on before.

Mr. Cordisco: I understand it and to be fair I didn't provide all the back-story. We actually…the last time that we were before the Planning Board was many months ago and the interim time period was working with Holiday Inn corporate to minimize their requirements for this…for this site.

Mr. Hughes: They know what they're doing. This isn't their first dance.

Mr. Cordisco: And you should also understand that they originally wanted more signage for this particular site and we had to go to them and tell them that the Town's restrictions are based on the amount of frontage and in this case we actually have only 58 feet of frontage so we are very limited and we understand we are asking a substantial variance. Now we are proposing a Holiday Inn. Those are the current plans. Now whether or not it’s a Holiday Inn at the end of the day I don't have a crystal ball. I can tell you, whatever variance if this Board is inclined to grant one whoever, you know, ends up at that particular location is going to have to live with.

Mr. Hughes: That's exactly right. It'll be conditioned and you'll get the shot at it. And that's why we're looking for the homework. If we find out that there was a restriction put on the signs the last time they were put up we can't further that. This is all the same Municipality. And we have found records. Jerry has an unbelievable amount of records and we've made decisions based on him finding the file and knowing how we got to this point so Holiday Inn knows what they are doing. Remind them that we know what we're doing as well.

Mr. Maher: Do you have some type of communication from Holiday Inn with their requirements?

Mr. Cordisco: Well we don't have…

Mr. Copolla: I mean, we…there was a specific sign consultant at Holiday Inn that we worked with after the last Planning Board meeting. This goes back, like Dominic said, last summer and we…he…we didn't…we had two conference call meetings with him and as Dominic said these are the…the…the signage, the corporate signage that they've proposed to us. We reduced that quite a bit. Some things they wouldn't change like combining two hotels on one sign except now we want…we need separate signage on the 17K side so I mean I think what we've shown here is realistic and to identify the hotel on the top of the hill from two sites…or two sides.

Ms. Drake: Do you have anything that shows what they originally wanted so we know how much you've already reduced it?

Mr. Copolla: Well, yeah, I mean this other one you could see that the photo of this other one from a…Kingston is enormous. And we're not proposing a sign that that's big at all. This one is over 20-feet tall.

Mr. Dates: I didn't even want to show you this photo only for style not for size.

Mr. McKelvey: She is looking for how many square feet you've reduced it.

Ms. Drake: Right. 

Mr. Copolla: Yeah, I mean, we've probably reduced it over 50…I'm guessing but 50% of that…

Ms. Drake: When you resubmit the plans maybe you can let us know how much you had already reduced it?

Mr. Copolla: Sure.

Mr. Cordisco:  Yes, sure.

Ms. Drake: Thank you.

Mr. McKelvey: All right now I'll make a motion we hold the Hearing over till next month. Which…what's the date?

Ms. Gennarelli: That would be May 27th.

Mr. McKelvey: May 27th.

Ms. Drake: I’ll second that motion.

Mr. McKelvey: And just to let the public know that there will be no re-noticing to the public. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Cordisco: Thank you all very much. See you next month. 

(Time Noted – 9:15 PM)

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 22, 2010             (Time Noted – 9:15 PM) 

SOUTH PLANK HOLDINGS LLC

209 SOUTH PLANK ROAD, NBGH







(60-3-2) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a convenience store and gas station.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant South Plank Holdings LLC.

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out twelve registered letters, eleven were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. for the record identify yourself.

Mr. Boyea: Yes, good evening my name is Chris Boyea, I'm with Bohler Engineering and here with me tonight is the owner's of the property, they sit before you, its Frank and Fred Hessarie as well as A.J. (Copolla) is helping us out with the architecture for this building as well. The property in question that we're looking at tonight is 209 South Plank Road. I did bring an aerial photograph of the facility that we're looking at. This is South Plank here, this is a small Town Road called Corel Place and there is an existing vacant gas station right here. The 300 intersection is just a little bit further down. The station has been vacant for some time and Frank and Fred have purchased this. I've done one other station with Frank and Fred they do a great job. They're a smaller local operator, they are based right here out of Newburgh and they've got some good plans. It's a great project that they are looking at doing. They are looking at redeveloping the site; keeping the gas station use they are going to take this small old service center, which had two bay facility where you could pull cars and they would change oil and brakes and those type of things. They are going to take that down and they are going to reuse this canopy. The variance that we are here for tonight is to extend this canopy in this direction. So we're just going to add to the existing canopy that's out here today. Now this canopy is only 10-feet from the front property line, 40-feet is required. So by us extending, we can reuse the canopy but the minute we extend the canopy we extend, you know, a new structure we would need to have a variance and that's what we're here for tonight is to extend this canopy a little bit further. The reason for the extension for the canopy is to accommodate a more conducive fuel environment. Today if you go out to that canopy, its not in operation but its what we used to call an inline fuel canopy where you had three dispensers and you would pull in behind somebody. And sometimes what happens is people don't far enough up so you can't get to the next dispenser or somebody is caught in the middle. They've done fueling and they want to leave. That's a very awkward situation. So what they would like to do is turn the dispensers so instead of running perpendicular or parallel to the road they are going perpendicular. So cars will actually be headed towards the store or be headed towards the street. So it’s the same number of dispensers. There's three dispensers that were out there today. We are still going to have three dispensers. Its just that when we turn it we are going to extend that canopy over in order to facilitate, you know, cars pulling in having a gas tank on the left hand side versus the right hand side. It really will just clean it up. The new building back here by doing what the new owners' are looking at doing the existing building was too close, it had some variance issues but when we take it down and rebuild a new building we are 100% within the setbacks and not only that they are also adding a lot of green space. If you look at this there's a lot of green space on this site that we're adding. It's actually over 50% green so all around it’s a great project and it's not something that is unlikely. I mean, the other project that they did is the same way, really sprucing it up from, you know, some might say an unsightly site with disarray to something that's really nice and neat. I'll put this one up here too. It kind of shows that as how it would be from an aerial view and again the only variance that we are really here for is just that canopy. Everything else we've brought into compliance. We have been in front of the Planning Board. When we were in front of the Planning Board we actually had four or five variances. We've done away with all of those, those other ones where they asked us to push the tanks further from the property line, which we did. They asked us to make the entrances a little smaller to conform with the Newburgh Building Code, which we did. We got rid of everything we possibly could. But the canopy, working with that canopy out front its important enough that we wanted to come here and ask for that relief. So we're here to answer any questions that you may have and with your approval we would then be back to the Planning Board for site plan approval and then hopefully, in the ground to build this year. 

Mr. Hughes: Was there a cleanup done on that property?

Mr. Boyea: Yes, yes, the tanks are not currently in the ground. We will be putting new tanks in the ground.

Mr. Hughes: Was there a Phase 1 that took place?

Mr. Boyea: Yes, yes.

Mr. Hughes: Is there a report of that?

Mr. Boyea: Oh, yes. That is actually on file.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, are you familiar with this site?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, somewhat, we have issued Demo Permits for the removal of the tanks. There was some contaminated soil located. We have received a closure report. D.E.C. did sign off on it. There was a Spill # issued which has been also closed out. All the existing tanks have been removed and is closed out.

Mr. Hughes: D.O.T. approved some of those cuts? That's a State Highway 52.

Mr. Canfield: Currently there is, the modifications I believe has to go back before the D.O.T. through the Planning Board. 

Mr. Hughes: And now, you're saying that that canopy that's existing you're going to extend out and its 10-feet from the property line. Is that complete right of way or the property line itself?

Mr. Boyea: It is currently 10-feet from the property line, which we're showing as this dark black line.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so now when do that how far is the dispenser concrete part of the island itself from the your property line? How does the car come in there and get in to those…?

Mr. Boyea: I see what you're saying. It’s a good question. In fact, we actually had to do a custom design here.

Mr. Hughes: I would guess.

Mr. Boyea: Yes, yes, so the dispenser today is exactly centered underneath the canopy. In the new proposal where we're turning them the dispenser is actually on the backside of the column closer to the building.

Mr. Hughes: And what's the distances? A car is 20-feet long so to speak.

Mr. Boyea: Yeah. Let me turn that right around here.

Mr. Hughes: And what your tractor-trailer deliveries for fuel. No I can see that over there.

Mr. Boyea: Actually this is pretty specific what I'm going to show you here. We do actually show the car outlines in there and if you can see the canopy or the columns are here, the dispensers are behind them. So that leaves room for circulation to get to this.

Mr. Hughes: So now what about your tractor-trailer deliveries of fuel? How do they get in there and…?    

Mr. Boyea: The tractor-trailer will enter…we did look at this with the Planning Board as well. The tractor-trailer will enter this entrance; they always drop fuel off of the passenger side.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Boyea: You know that? O.K. At that point then we've done the truck tractor plans so they can enter here, exit here.

Mr. Hughes: So now, you never did give me a number of how far off the end of that concrete part of the dispenser island is.

Mr. Boyea: I'll get you a number I just need to grab a scale.

Mr. Maher: I'm going to say 28-feet.

Mr. Boyea:  The edge of the dispenser is approximately 28-feet. 

Mr. Hughes: I could have saved you a few steps he whispered that before I could. 

Mr. Boyea: You didn't have the heart to tell me, huh?

Mr. Hughes: He's a ventriloquist. All right so…

Mr. Boyea: And then the last thing, we're going to put up a cell tower and wind farm back here but no... (Laughter)

Mr. Hughes: That's all right.

Mr. Boyea: We'll get to that.

Mr. Hughes: We want 10% of the…. (Laughter) Water and sewer you are going to be hooked on to?

Mr. Boyea: Yes, in fact, Jerry told us we are going to sprinkler the building as well so.

Mr. Maher: Didn't suggest? Told you?

Mr. Boyer: Not just, we knew that.

Mr. Hughes: He's whispering too. I have nothing else. Thank you for answering those questions.

Ms. Drake: Is there an issue with the fact that the gas station has been closed for a while and now reopening as a gas station?

Mr. Boyea: The use, I'm sorry was that for me or…?

Mr. Donovan: I…well I haven't gotten that far yet but is the use permitted in the zone?

Mr. Hughes: It is allowed. There is no continuance problem here. 

Mr. Donovan: Then there is no issue. 

Ms. Drake: Oh, O.K.

Mr. Boyea: O.K. It's a .86 acre site, its located in a business zoning district and a convenience store with gas is an allowed use. Yes. 

Ms. Drake: O.K. I just didn't know if there was a special code that once a gas station closes it can't reopen.

Mr. Donovan: No.

Mr. Hughes: You have other installations in Town, you said? 

Mr. Hessarie: Hi, my name is Frank Hessarie I'm co-owner of Prestige Petroleum. We've been in business twenty-one years and Prestige Mobil on 9W, Middlehope, right before Marlboro on the right-hand side.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I know your brother really I don't know you.

Mr. Hessarie: Yes. We owned the deli too. So we've been there twenty-one years actually and we rebuilt that site 2001.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I have nothing else. Thank you for answering those questions.

Chairperson Cardone: The report from the Orange County Department of Planning is Local Determination. Do we have any questions, comments from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? 

Mr. Wagner: Hi, I'm Steve Wagner this is my wife Karlene, Town of Newburgh. My concern is the signage and lights in this Town. We live on a historical piece of property. We live in that stone house in a little house that was built in 1740, in the back and we live on approximately 3 ½-acres back there with a stream. The stream is across the road from that gas station for one thing. Also because of the banks and because the develop in there, we moved up here in '76, I put up fourteen pines on the other side of the stream with owners' permissions to block the lightage but we're not winning. The bank light, security light which I know is needed shines in our bedroom window even through that and we're way in the back and we're concerned about the lighting and the canopy and how that is going to effect us. Actually the way that they described it it will move the light, if there's any lighting I can discuss what kind of lighting they're going to have, I really don't know that, will actually hit our windows more. I welcome them to the Town. We don't have a piece of paper on our property. We take great pride in this Town and we want to keep it clean. But we welcome business. We welcome progress. We realize that this isn't going to built for a home, the construction, we understand it’s a business. But we wanted to be like that sign up there, Crossroads, a good crossroads something that people can remember and the last time I was before the Board I said that as we come through that Union and 52, even though there's been office spaces up there one very unfortunate incident but going on up we see stone walls and we start to see the entrance to this Town and it makes people proud. And if you look at most of those properties there even Tots R Us which is behind us we have a great working with them and I hope we have a great working relationship with these two gentlemen but I am concerned about the lighting. And I am also concerned about, being a former aviator, fuel spillage and how fire suppressant and what can happen.

Mr. Boyea: They were good comments and we appreciate you showing up and sharing them because that's how we can address those things even through the Planning Board. You should be aware we are going through site plan approval and they are going to be interested in those things as well. Again, I would encourage you to visit one of the other locations that they have here locally because one of the things that very easy about representing this group is that when you're walking through a site they'll stop talking to you and pick up a cigarette butt. So and I'm confident go up any day and you're going to see that it’s a nice operation. As far as drainage goes and the stream and things of that nature we're trying to have the least impact here as possible so actually reducing the impervious area on the site so that our stormwater is less than is out there today. So more green space is definitely going to better for everybody. As far as lighting goes there's no doubt and we are working on right now. We are assembling a lighting plan that will show photometrics and we are going to submit that to the Planning Board. It's typical that we to reduce any light spill off our property to the one-foot candle so I would imagine that's going to be less than what was there when the service station was in operation. As far as fuel and spills and those types of things you should rest assured that one that before we actually…the new owner's purchased the property, that there was the Phase 1 and the D.E.C. was involved and there was a closed out so a lot of money has gone to cleaning up the site. The last thing we want to do is re-inject anything into the ground here. New tanks are going to be in the ground. New dispensers are going to be in the ground. I mean what you're talking about is a class act operation that meets all current double wall pipe standards. In fact if you had some more interest in it I would love to share more. I don't want to bore everybody with spill bucket containments in case the fuel pipe somehow slips off during fueling how it gets catched and caught, vapor recovery, there's a lot that goes into it but certainly we're not saving any of the old system. There is nothing to save at this point, you know, everything is new from the tank right to the dispenser. Fire suppression, it's required for self-serve stations in New York State not only is it required now but in recent standards they've even upped it to make sure that it works in 90 mph winds. So it used that it…you would just have a system but now it's gotten to the State what if its windy the day that the fire happens so it's even go to that standard. There's a lot that goes into it. In fact after the meeting I'd love to go through more of it if you're interested but we're anxious to be here and I just can't, you know, from what we're going to do here. I know that it’s a good thing for the Town.

Mr. Wagner: You know most people don't realize that that stream is a great stream and its been protected in certain areas by owner's and it's not been protected in certain areas. You can certainly go on our property and see it that way. Like I said there isn't a piece of paper on our property but what's more important is there's a tremendous amount of wildlife back there. I mean, I don't report the black bears that I see or the gray herons or a whole bunch of things and the fish are swimming very well there and we want to keep it that way. Gardnertown remained after the one stone house that's on the property; it was Silas Gardner's house. So this is Gardner-Town and we want to maintain that. People come into our property and they can't believe that after all this development, we came up in '76, after all this development around us and we bought this holding battle with pine trees and fences and everything, that they walk in and they think it’s a park in the middle. We invite anybody who is interested in that to come visit us but I'm saying that's the kind of quality and the kind of…we're kind of…I'm impressed with the Board Members tonight and how they look in the little details of certain other issues. I welcome the artist to the neighborhood. That's what we need. But really, no offense sir, we don't need more convenience stores or gas stations or delis in this Town. We need quality, well built buildings and landscaping.

Ms. Wagner: I was impressed to see that there was a lot of green around here on the proposed site, which I like. You know we were concerned about the landscaping. I'm also concerned about what are your operating hours going to be. Is it going to be 24/7?

Mr. Boyea: I don't know that that's been…for now it’s a safe assumption it would be 24/7 but I'm not sure that that's been determined yet. 

Ms. Wagner: O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: I think the lighting, Jerry, the Planning Board would insist the lighting stays on the property normally, right?

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, typically there would be a lighting throw plan submitted which will display candlepower and exactly where the light will splash. As for your existing issue, if you call the Code Compliance Department perhaps we can send someone over and speak to the bank and see if we can get that light out of your window. O.K.?

Ms. Wagner: Thank you. 

Mr. Wagner: Thank you, like I said, welcome. 

Mr. Hessarie: Thank you.

Mr. Manley: Will you're canopy have lighting on the top have lighting that goes out at all or just underneath shining down?    

Mr. Boyea: This canopy…I think I know what you're referring to, some of the corporate branded stations, the bigger operators have like a blue band that might go around one of the canopy on the fascia or Hess, I don't want to name names…

Mr. Manley: That are lit.

Mr. Boyea: That are lit, that is not going to be the case at this location. It's a solid fascia band with recessed lights inside the canopy.  


Ms. Drake: So then maybe you'll be taking that canopy down and building a new one just 20-foot larger?

Mr. Boyea: We hope we don't have to take it down that's part of the cost, cost savings here. We're hoping to add to it when we get into it and look at the structure of it during construction we'll have to make that call.

Ms. Drake: Is that an issue for us? For the Board?

Mr. Hughes: If you knock it and it's non-conforming it is.

Mr. Donovan: Well, if you should grant the variance, I mean, then it gets the extra 10-feet. 

Ms. Drake: But does it matter if they take it down and rebuild it as a part of the variance? 

Mr. Donovan: If they build it within the timeframe allowed to the variance, no. If they take it down and then the space should lie vacant for whatever time six months or a year we have in the Code then it will be an issue.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: But otherwise if they, so long as it's in the footprint where its shown it really doesn't, you know, we're concerned about the dimensions not whether they take it down and build a new one or add on to it. You just got to stay within the dimensions shown on the plan. 

Ms. Drake: O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: Same footprint.

Mr. Boyea: Same footprint. Yes.

Mr. Hughes: So long as everybody understands.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions? 

Ms. Eaton: Are you taking that building down, you said?

Mr. Boyea: The existing building will be removed.

Ms. Eaton: And are you replacing it with what?

Mr. Boyea: We are going to build a new building. We're going to take this building down here and we're going to build this new building here. 

Ms. Eaton: And what's the difference in size?

Mr. Boyea: Approximately 900, 1000 sq.ft. in difference in size. The new building is 100% conforming with the zoning the old building is not. It's too close to the side yard. 

Mr. Hughes: You're entirely within the building envelope?

Mr. Boyea: Correct. Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any other questions or comments from the public? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. Hughes: So moved. 
Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 9:40 PM)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 22, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 10:28 PM) 



SOUTH PLANK HOLDINGS LLC

209 SOUTH PLANK ROAD, NBGH







(60-3-2) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a convenience store and gas station.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of South Plank Holdings LLC, 209 South Plank Road, seeking an area variance for the front yard setback to build a convenience store and gas station. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: Everything sounded in good order. The old tanks have been removed.

Mr. Maher: Definitely an improvement from the eyesore that has been there for quite a while now.  

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.  

  







(Time Noted – 10:29 PM)
ZBA MEETING – APRIL 22, 2010             (Time Noted – 9:40 PM) 

CAROL AND WILLIAM LYNN

312 LAKESIDE ROAD, NBGH







(50-1-38) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of one and both side yards combined setbacks to build a second floor addition on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Carol and William Lynn.

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out twenty-two registered letters, twelve were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Mr. Manley: Madam Chair, I am going recuse myself on this particular application. 

Chairperson Cardone: If you would identify yourself for the record?

Ms. Lynn: My name is Carol Lynn; this is my son, William Lynn. I live at 314 Lakeside Road and he lives next door to me in my house at 312 Lakeside Road and we are here for an area variance. We would like put an addition on 312 Lakeside Road. We would like to double its size but not change the footprint. We'd like to just add another story to it.

Ms. Eaton: You are Town water and sewer on Lakeside?

Ms. Lynn: Yes, we are.

Mr. Maher: Jerry, what is the maximum height as far as framing goes? 

Mr. Canfield: I'm sorry, what?

Mr. Maher: The maximum height allowed for residential framing? 

Mr. Canfield: Thirty-five. (Inaudible)

Mr. Maher: As far as framing allowed, is it allowed 3-story height wood frame construction? 

Mr. Canfield: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Does it have to be sprinklered, that third floor?

Mr. Lynn: No, its not three stories, it storage, it’s a garage…I mean it's an attic. It's not a third finished story or else it would have to be sprinklered. It just has a full walk-up attic it's not a living area. We have no basement. It's just a crawl space. We need storage. We  have a baby on the way.

Mr. Maher: So you said there is no basement?

Mr. Lynn: No, it's a small…there is a basement where the boiler is but its probably 10 by 18, the width of the house small and the rest of it is all crawlspace. 

Mr. Hughes: So are you having heat in that upstairs? 

Mr. Lynn: The attic area? No. Unfinished. 

Ms. Drake: Will it actually be taller that your current…your…the house next door? Or will it be close in that height? 

Mr. Lynn: It's probably be close I'm not sure of the exact height of her house. 

Chairperson Cardone: The structure in the backyard of the house is that used as a garage or…?

Mr. Lynn: Yeah, there is a two-car separated garage.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board? Mr. Canfield, do you have something to add? 

Mr. Canfield: Nothing to add but just a question for clarification? Is this on? 

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Canfield: Oh, O.K. I want to make sure you hear me. Looking at the side elevations as proposed there is a full dormer with the double hung windows in that unfinished attic area. This is unoccupied space and it will remain unoccupied space?

Mr. Lynn: Yes it is going to remain unoccupied. 

Mr. Canfield: O.K.

Mr. Lynn: We wouldn't be able to finish it as per a couple of your Inspectors anytime without a sprinkler or a total different plan. So…

Mr. Canfield: But that will give you a probably a good 7'6 or 8 ft attic up there.

Mr. Lynn: I think it's like 7'4 it says on the plans but we just need storage. Living on the lake got lots of toys, boats and jet skis and so the garage is full. Like I said, a baby on the way and we have no room. The house is only 18 ft. wide. It's like living in a trailer. If any of you experienced that before we just have no room for the baby.

Mr. Canfield: Just to clarify that there is no occupancy intended for the attic. O.K. Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions or comments from the public? 
Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Mr. Manley has abstained himself

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 9:48 PM)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – APRIL 22, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 10:29 PM) 



CAROL AND WILLIAM LYNN

312 LAKESIDE ROAD, NBGH







(50-1-38) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of one and both side yards combined setbacks to build a second floor addition on the residence.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application Carol and William Lynn, 312 Lakeside Road, seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of one and both side yards combined setbacks to build a second floor addition. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I think if we were to approve it one condition would be that the attic has to remain a non-living area. I'll make a motion to approve the application.

Ms. Drake: I'll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

James Manley: Recused

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.  

 







(Time Noted – 10:30 PM)
ZBA MEETING – APRIL 22, 2010

END OF MEETING                                           (Time Noted – 10:30 PM)

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. everyone has the March minutes? Do we have any additions or deletions?

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval?

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye?

Aye - All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other Board business? 

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to adjourn?

Mr. Manley: So moved.

Mr. Hughes: Before we adjourn…

Chairperson Cardone: Yes?

Mr. Hughes: …there's been a suggestion from The Association of Towns to have the summer session somewhere local here. We're looking into the possibility of having it at my office in Harriman at the IBDW hall where they have computer and places to handle it. Our Municipal Planning Federation has suggested that they are going to pursue that actively and we'll know in the next couple of weeks whether they are going to do that or not.

Chairperson Cardone: That's good.

Mr. Hughes: So we're not staying over in hotels.

Chairperson Cardone: There are hotels around there.

Mr. Hughes: There are but they've decided to move it into Orange County.

Ms. Drake: That's the Association of Towns?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Ms. Drake: Instead of having to go down the City? Oh. Saratoga?

Mr. Hughes: Last year it was in Saratoga.

Chairperson Cardone: We did have a motion. Did we vote on it to adjourn?

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  The motion is carried. The meeting is adjourned.


PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY







DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 10:35 PM)
